/ﬁ/ Vq lley ther Clean Water e Healthy Environment ¢ Flood Protection

January 13, 2023
MEETING NOTICE

SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

Members of the Board Audit Committee:

District 2 Director Barbara Keegan, Committee Chair
District 3 Director Richard Santos

Staff Support of the Board Audit Committee:

Rick Callender, Esq., Chief Executive Officer
Carlos Orellana, District Counsel

Michele King, Clerk of the Board

Melanie Richardson, Assistant Chief Executive Officer
Tina Yoke, Chief Operating Officer

Darin Taylor, Chief Financial Officer

Rachael Gibson, Chief of External Affairs
Rechelle Blank, Chief Operating Officer

Aaron Baker, Chief Operating Officer

Brian Hopper, Sr. Assistant District Counsel
Anthony Fulcher, Sr. Assistant District Counsel
Leslie Orta, Sr. Assistant District Counsel
Joseph Aranda, Assistant District Counsel

Rita Chan, Assistant District Counsel

Andrew Gschwind, Assistant District Counsel
Mike Cook, Deputy Administrative Officer
Tony Ndah, Deputy Administrative Officer
Donald Rocha, Deputy Administrative Officer
Emmanuel Aryee, Deputy Operating Officer
Christoper Hakes, Deputy Operating Officer
Bhavani Yerrapotu, Deputy Operating Officer
Anthony Mendiola, Program Adminstrator
George Skiles, Partner, Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting

A Santa Clara Valley Water District Special Board Audit Committee Meeting has been
scheduled to occur at 11:00 a.m. on Friday, January 20, 2023 in the Headquarters Building
Boardroom located at the Santa Clara Valley Water District, 5700 Almaden Expressway, San Jose.

Members of the public may join the meeting via Zoom Teleconference at:
https://valleywater.zoom.us/j/91608079873.

The meeting agenda and corresponding materials are located on our website:
https://www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/committees/board-committees.

Santa Clara Valley Water District | 5750 Almaden Expressway, San Jose, CA 95118-3686 | (408) 265-2600 | www.valleywater.org z’\'

1


https://valleywater.zoom.us/j/83937945203
https://www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/committees/board-committees

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



&

Valley Water

Santa Clara Valley Water District
Board Audit Committee Meeting

Headquarters Building Boardroom
5700 Almaden Expressway, San Jose, CA 95118

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://valleywater.zoom.us/j/91608079873

SPECIAL MEETING
AGENDA

Friday, January 20, 2023
11:00 AM

District Mission: Provide Silicon Valley safe, clean water for a healthy life, environment and economy.

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE All public records relating to an open session item on this agenda, which are not DARIN TAYLOR
Barbara F. Keegan, Chair - District 2 exempt from disclosure pursuant to the California Public Records Act, that are Committee Liaison
Richard P. Santos - District 3 distributed to a majority of the legislative body, will be available to the public through
the legislative body agenda web page at the same time that the public records are Nicole Merritt
distributed or made available to the legislative body. Santa Clara Valley Water Assistant Deputy Clerk Il
District will make reasonable efforts to accommodate persons with disabilities wishing Office/Clerk of the Board
to participate in the legislative body’s meeting. Please advise the Clerk of the Board (408) 630-3262
Office of any special needs by calling (408) 265-2600. nmerritt@valleywater.org

www.valleywater.org

Note: The finalized Board Agenda, exception items and supplemental items will be posted prior to the meeting in accordance with the Brown Act.




Santa Clara Valley Water District
Board Audit Committee

SPECIAL MEETING
AGENDA

Headquarters Building Boardroom
5750 Almaden Expressway, San Jose, CA 95118
Join Zoom Meeting:

https://valleywater.zoom.us!/j/91608079873
**IMPORTANT NOTICES AND PARTICIPATION INSTRUCTIONS***

Friday, January 20, 2023 11:00 AM

Santa Clara Valley Water District (Valley Water) Board of Directors/Board Committee
meetings are held as a “hybrid” meetings, conducted in-person as well as by
telecommunication, and is compliant with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act.

To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members
of the public have an option to participate by teleconference/video conference or attend
in-person. To observe and participate in the meeting by teleconference/video conference,
please see the meeting link located at the top of the agenda. If attending in-person, you are
required to comply with Ordinance 22-03 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE SANTA CLARA
VALLEY WATER DISTRICT SPECIFYING RULES OF DECORUM FOR PARTICIPATION
IN BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS located at
https://s3.us-west-2.amazonaws.com/valleywater.org.if-us-west-2/f2-live/s3fs-public/Ord.pdf

In accordance with the requirements of Gov. Code Section 54954.3(a), members of the
public wishing to address the Board/Committee at a video conferenced meeting, during
public comment or on any item listed on the agenda, should use the “Raise Hand” tool
located in the Zoom meeting link listed on the agenda, at the time the item is called.
Speakers will be acknowledged by the Board Chair in the order requests are received and
granted speaking access to address the Board.

. Members of the Public may test their connection to Zoom Meetings at:
https://zoom.us/test

« Members of the Public are encouraged to review our overview on joining Valley Water
Board Meetings at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TojJpYCxXm0

Valley Water, in complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), requests
individuals who require special accommodations to access and/or participate in Valley
Water Board of Directors/Board Committee meetings to please contact the Clerk of the
Board’s office at (408) 630-2711, at least 3 business days before the scheduled meeting to
ensure that Valley Water may assist you.

This agenda has been prepared as required by the applicable laws of the State of
California, including but not limited to, Government Code Sections 54950 et. seq. and has
not been prepared with a view to informing an investment decision in any of Valley Water’s

January 20, 2023 Page 1 of 4

4



bonds, notes or other obligations. Any projections, plans or other forward-looking
statements included in the information in this agenda are subject to a variety of
uncertainties that could cause any actual plans or results to differ materially from any such
statement. The information herein is not intended to be used by investors or potential
investors in considering the purchase or sale of Valley Water's bonds, notes or other
obligations and investors and potential investors should rely only on information filed by
Valley Water on the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic Municipal Market
Access System for municipal securities disclosures and Valley Water’s Investor Relations
website, maintained on the World Wide Web at https://lemma.msrb.org/ and
https://www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/financebudget/investor-relations, respectively.

Under the Brown Act, members of the public are not required to provide identifying
information in order to attend public meetings. Through the link below, the Zoom webinar
program requests entry of a name and email address, and Valley Water is unable to modify
this requirement. Members of the public not wishing to provide such identifying information
are encouraged to enter “Anonymous” or some other reference under name and to enter a
fictional email address (e.g., attendee@valleywater.org) in lieu of their actual address.
Inputting such values will not impact your ability to access the meeting through Zoom.

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://valleywater.zoom.us/j/91608079873
Meeting ID: 916 0807 9873
Join by Phone:

1 (669) 900-9128, 9160807987 3#

1. CALL TO ORDER:
1.1.  Roll Call.

2. TIME OPEN FOR PUBLIC COMMENT ON ANY ITEM NOT ON THE AGENDA. Notice
to the Public: Members of the public who wish to address the Committee on any item not
listed on the agenda should access the "Raise Hand” tool located in Zoom meeting link
listed on the agenda. Speakers will be acknowledged by the Committee Chair in order
requests are received and granted speaking access to address the Committee.
Speakers comments should be limited to three minutes or as set by the Chair. The law
does not permit Committee action on, or extended discussion of, any item not on the
agenda except under special circumstances. If Committee action is requested, the
matter may be placed on a future agenda. All comments that require a response will be
referred to staff for a reply in writing. The Committee may take action on any item of
business appearing on the posted agenda.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None

4, REGULAR AGENDA:

January 20, 2023 Page 2 of 4



4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

Review and Discuss the 2023 Board Audit Committee (BAC) Work Plan. 23-0026

Recommendation: Review and discuss topics of interest raised at prior BAC
meetings and make any necessary adjustments to the 2023
BAC Work Plan.

Manager: Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068
Attachments: Attachment 1: 2023 BAC Work Plan
Status Update on the Implementation of Recommendations from the 2015 22-1198

Consultant Contracts Management Process Audit Conducted by Navigant
Consulting, Inc. (Navigant).

Recommendation: Receive an update on the implementation of the
recommendations made by Navigant in the 2015 Consultant
Contracts Management Process Audit and the Consultant
Contracts Improvement Process.

Manager: Tony Ndah, 408-630-2208
Attachments: Attachment 1: PowerPoint
2014 Transparency Compliance Audit Recommendation Status Update 22-1273

and Provide Guidance to Staff Regarding Follow-up on Completed
Management Actions.

Recommendation: A. Receive and discuss the 2014 Transparency Compliance
Audit Recommendation Status Update; and
B. Provide guidance to staff regarding Follow-up on
Completed Management Actions.

Manager: Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068

Attachments: Attachment 1: Transparency Compliance Audit Review

Attachment 2: Valley Water Ends Policies Outcome Measures

Discuss Board Audit Committee’s 2023 Annual Self-Evaluation Process, 23-0025
Provide Guidance Regarding Preferred Method to Conduct Process, and

Request Chief Audit Executive to Conduct Self-evaluation Process and

Return to Provide Summary of Discussions.

Recommendation: A. Discuss Board Audit Committee’s 2023 annual
self-evaluation process; and
B. Provide guidance regarding preferred method to conduct
process; and
C. Request Chief Audit Executive (CAE) to conduct
self-evaluation process and return to provide summary of
discussions.

Manager: Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068

January 20, 2023

Page 3 of 4


http://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=10085
http://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8e3eda2b-ba81-4471-a5d8-493113ca4e10.pdf
http://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9770
http://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=24e4039c-ec3b-4f72-be3b-9c7f2b9b2a59.pdf
http://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9845
http://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c688767d-f2d9-4531-8ec7-1ce0d4efe04a.pdf
http://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bb4a8379-1da1-4fca-aa6b-7c45d9d0a858.pdf
http://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=10084

4.5.

4.6.

Request Chief Audit Executive (CAE) Activity Report from Sjoberg 23-0027
Evashenk Consulting, Inc. to Evaluate CAE Performance, and Return to
Present Report At A Later Date.

Recommendation: A. Request Chief Audit Executive (CAE) activity report from
Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting, Inc. to evaluate CAE
performance; and

B. Direct CAE to return to present report at a future meeting.

Manager: Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068
2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan Updates. 23-0029
Recommendation: A. Discuss the 2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan; and

B. Authorize staff to either (1) solicit Board input regarding
future audit topics in order to develop recommended
updates to 2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan; or (2)
present 2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan to the full
Board for consideration and approval subject to any
changes approved by the BAC.

Manager: Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068
Attachments: Attachment 1: 2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan

5. CLERK REVIEW AND CLARIFICATION OF COMMITTEE REQUESTS.
This is an opportunity for the Clerk to review and obtain clarification on any formally
moved, seconded, and approved requests and recommendations made by the
Committee during the meeting.

6. ADJOURN:

6.1.

Adjourn to Regular Meeting at 2:00 p.m., on February 15, 2023.

January 20, 2023

Page 4 of 4


http://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=10086
http://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=10088
http://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8cac61a8-87fc-4f7e-827b-334d5fd2077f.pdf

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



A Santa Clara Valley Water District

Valley Water
File No.: 23-0026 Agenda Date: 1/20/2023
Item No.: 4.1.
COMMITTEE AGENDA MEMORANDUM
Board Audit Committee
Government Code § 84308 Applies: Yes [ No
(If “YES” Complete Attachment A - Gov. Code § 84308)
SUBJECT:

Review and Discuss the 2023 Board Audit Committee (BAC) Work Plan.

RECOMMENDATION:
Review and discuss topics of interest raised at prior BAC meetings and make any necessary
adjustments to the 2023 BAC Work Plan.

SUMMARY:

Per the BAC’s Charter, Article Ill, Paragraph 6.2, The Committee shall, in coordination with Valley
Water’s Clerk of the Board, develop a proposed Annual Work Plan. Items shall be included in the
Annual Work Plan based upon a majority vote of the Committee.

Under direction of the Clerk, Work Plans are used by all Board Committees to increase Committee
efficiency, provide increased public notice of intended Committee discussions, and enable improved
follow-up by staff. Work Plans are dynamic documents managed by Committee Chairs and are
subject to change. Committee Work Plans also serve as Annual Committee Accomplishments
Reports.

Looking forward, the topics of discussion identified for the February 15th, 2023, BAC Meeting can be
summarized as follows:

Election of 2023 BAC Chair and Vice-chair

2023 BAC Work Plan

2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan

Conduct Annual Self-Evaluation

Receive and Discuss Audit Recommendations Implementation Status

Receive a Status Update of the 2019 District Counsel’s Audit

Receive a Quarterly Financial Status Update for Mid-year Review

NoOORON =~

Attachment 1 is the 2023 BAC Work Plan. Upon review, the BAC may make changes to be
incorporated into the work plan.

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 1 of 2 Printed on 1/13/2023
9 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

File No.: 23-0026

Agenda Date: 1/20/2023
Item No.: 4.1.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1: 2023 BAC Work Plan

UNCLASSIFIED MANAGER:
Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068

Santa Clara Valley Water District

Page 2 of 2

10

Printed on 1/13/2023

powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE 2023 WORKPLAN
January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Item #

ACTIVITY/SUBJECT

Board Audit Committee Meeting Dates

Number of Agenda Items per Meeting Date

Meeting Dates

Ql Q2 Q3 Q4
20-Jan 15-Feb 15-Mar | 19-Apr 17-May 21-Jun | 19-Jul 16-Aug 20-Sep | 18-Oct 15-Nov 20-Dec
6 7 3 2 6 4 4 6 5 2 6 3
L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L]

NOTES/RECOMMENDATIONS

Note: For informational purposes only. This value excludes Item 12
because that items is prepared by the Committee Clerk, not the Cl Team,
and is for the Full Board, not just the BAC.

Note: The BAC approved a regular meeting schedule for 2023, to meet
monthly, on the third Wednesdays at 2:00 p.m.

Board Audit Committee Management

6

Election of 2023 BAC Chair and Vice Chair

Board Audit Committee Audit Charter

Review and Update 2023 BAC Work Plan

Discuss Scope of Annual Audit Training
from Board Independent Auditor

Receive Annual Audit Training from Board
Independent Auditor

Conduct Annual Self-Evaluation

Note: The * denotes that an item is on the BAC meeting agenda for the corresponding month in which the e is listed. The shading repr1nt1at the items have been completed.

Recommendation:
Nominate and elect the 2023 Board Audit Committee Chair and Vice Chair.

Recommendation:
Propose modifications to the Board Audit Committee Audit Charter to be
presented to the full Board.

NOTE: This is an "as needed" topic

Recommendation:

A. Review and Discuss topics of interest raised at prior Board Audit
Committee Meetings and make any necessary adjustments to the Board
Audit Committee Work Plan; and

B. Approve the updated 2023 Board Audit Committee Work Plan.

Recommendation:
Discuss scope of Annual Audit Training from Board Independent Auditor.

Recommendation:
Receive Annual Audit Training from Board Independent Auditor.

Notes:

Actual Training will be scheduled by Board Scheduler and provided to Cl
Team (will not be conducted during regular mtg.)

Jan. Recommendation:

A. Discuss Annual Self-Evaluation Process; and

B. Authorize Staff to initiate the process and return to BAC with results at a
later date

Feb. Recommendation:

A. Receive and Discuss the Results of the Annual Self-Evaluation
Discussions; and
B. Authorize staff to Prepare Formal Report and Present to the full Board.

Note:
lan = Discuss the Eval brocess and alert BAC to uncoming interviews: Feb =

Attachment,J.........
Page 1 of 5




BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE 2023 WORKPLAN
January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

1 2 3 4
Item # ACTIVITY/SUBJECT Q Q Q Q NOTES/RECOMMENDATIONS
20-Jan 15-Feb 15-Mar | 19-Apr 17-May 21-Jun | 19-Jul 16-Aug 20-Sep | 18-Oct 15-Nov 20-Dec

Jan. Recommendation:
Request CAE Activity Report from Sjoberg Evashenk to evaluate CAE
Performance.

Receive and Discuss CAE Activity Report to R . Mar. Recommendation:

Evaluate Auditor Performance Receive and discuss the CAE Activity Report
Note:
Jan = BAC Requests report from CAE; Mar = Receive and discuss report
from CAE
Recommendation:
A. Discuss option to extend Board Independent Auditor Contract with TAP
International, Inc. for Board Independent Auditing Services currently

Discuss Extension or Termination of Board scheduled to expire effective June 30, 2022; and

Chief Audit Executive (CAE) Contract for B. Approve recommendation to the full Board to: 1. Allow the expiration of

8 Board Independent Auditing Services Prior the Board Independent Auditor Contract with TAP International; or 2.

to Expiration of the Agreement around Exercise option to extend Board Independent Auditor Contract with TAP

December 2024 International, Inc.
Note:
Agreement effective date was 12/27/21 or 1/1/22.
Note:

Chief Audit E tive - R t f ——

et Audt xgcu ve - Request for Review Panel for the role of the Chief Board Auditor will be the BAC

Proposal: Review Panel (Apr 2024)
members
Recommendation:
Discuss the scope of work for the 2024 Risk Assessment.

10 Tri-annual Risk Assessment (CY 2024)

Note:
Initiate discussions in February 2024; Deliverable due by September 2024

Board Audit Committee Special Requests

12

External Financial Auditor Meeting with
Individual Board members

Provide BAC Summary Report to full Board

Note: Schedule as needed.

Note: Report to be provided to Board in non-agenda the month after each
BAC meeting, or as part of the Board Committee Reports, prepared by
Committee Clerk

Management and Third Party Audits

13

Review Draft Audited Financial Statements

Note: The * denotes that an item is on the BAC meeting agenda for the corresponding month in which the e is listed. The shading repr1nﬁt the items have been completed.

Recommendation:

A. Review draft Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the Fiscal Year
Ended June 30, 2022; and

B. Direct staff to have Financial Auditor to contact Board Members and
present, if necessary.

Note: This is a Nov. agenda item

Attachment,J.........
Page 2 of 5




BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE 2023 WORKPLAN
January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

18

19

20

22

Plan
Audit - 2019 Contract Change Order Audit

Recommendation Implementation Status
(Annual Rpt. in August; Target Completion
=TBD)

Audit - 2020 District Counsel Audit

Recommendation Implementation Status
(Annual Rpt. in January; Target Completion
=TBD)

Audit - 2020 Real Estate Audit
Recommendation Implementation Status
(Annual Rpt. in November; Target
Completion = TBD)

Audit - 2020 SCW Program Grants
Management

Recommendation Implementation Status
(Semi-Annual Rpt. in March and
September; Target Completion = June
30,2023)

Recommendation Implementation Status
(Annual Rpt. in May; Target Completion =
TBD)

1 2 3 4
Item # ACTIVITY/SUBJECT Q Q Q Q NOTES/RECOMMENDATIONS
20-Jan = 15-Feb 15-Mar | 19-Apr = 17-May 21-Jun | 19-Jul 16-Aug 20-Sep | 18-Oct 15-Nov 20-Dec

Recommendation:

Audit Report of the Water Utility Enterprise e

14 P . 4 P . Receive and Discuss the Audit Report of the Water Utility Enterprise Funds

Funds for the Fiscal Year .
for the Fiscal Year.
Recommendation:

15 Receive QEMS Annual Internal Audit Report . Receive information regarding the Quality and Environmental

Management System.
Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit

Audit Recommendations Implementation R R . recommendations.

Status
Note:
This is a December/June item; February 2023 item was delayed from Dec
2022; Return to the BAC every 6 months

Board Independent Auditor - Sjoberg Evashenk Items
Review and Update Annual Audit Work Recommendation:
L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L]

Audit - 2021 Permitting Best Practices

Discuss the Annual Audit Work Plan and update, if necessary.

Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit
recommendations.

Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit
recommendations.

Note:
This is a January item; February 2022 item was delayed from January

Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit
recommendations.

Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit
recommendations.

Note:
Updates in 2022 slipped by 2 mos.

Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit
recommendations.

23

Audit - To Be Determined
Receive notification of initiated Audit

Note: The * denotes that an item is on the BAC meeting agenda for the corresponding month in which the e is listed. The shading repr1nts3t the items have been completed.

Note: Audit Objectives - What is the objective of this audit?

Attachment. .. .....
Page 3 of 5



BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE 2023 WORKPLAN
January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

1 2 3 4
Item # ACTIVITY/SUBJECT Q Q Q Q NOTES/RECOMMENDATIONS
20-Jan 15-Feb 15-Mar | 19-Apr 17-May 21-Jun | 19-Jul 16-Aug 20-Sep | 18-Oct 15-Nov 20-Dec
24 Review Audit Progress Report Recomm_endatlon: ) .
Receive an update on the status of the on-going audit.
Recommendation:
25 Review Audit Draft R tP tati e
eview Audit Dratt Report Fresentation Receive and discuss the Final Draft Audit Report.
Recommendation:
. \ . A. Receive and discuss the Management Response to the Final Draft Audit
Review Management's Response to Audit
Final Draft Report Report; and
P B. Authorize staff work with the CAE to finalize the Audit Report and
present it to the Board of Directors.
Management Audits - PMA, MGO, and 3rd Party Items
Audit - 2014 Transparency Compliance
Audit
Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit
. . recommendations.
Recommendation Implementation Status
27 (Annual Rpt. in November; Target .

Completion = TBD)

Audit - 2015 Consultant Contracts Audit

NOTE:

January item was delayed from Nov/Dec 2022; Chief of Staff is waiting for
the last set of metrics before taking to the Chiefs for a final approval of the
Performance Measures

Status Update on the Implementation of
Recommendations from the 2015
Consultant Contracts Management Process
Audit Conducted by Navigant Consulting,
Inc. and the Consultant Contracts

Improvement Process.

Audit - 2019 Lower Silver Creek Audit

Note: Staff update every 6 months; January item was delayed from
Nov/Dec 2022 by new Deputy (Tony Ndah) to allow him to get familiar
with the issues, and to allow staff to complete the last of open
recommendations

Recommendation:

Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of the
recommendations made by Navigant in the 2015 Consultant Contracts
Management Process Audit and on the Consultant Contracts Improvement
Process.

29

Recommendation Implementation Status
(Semi Annual Rpt. in February; Delayed to

September)
2022 QEMS Improvements

Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit
recommendations.

Implementation

Recommendation Implementation Status

Recommendation:

30 3
(Annual Rpt. in August) Receive and discuss a status update on the opportunities for improvement.
Miscellaneous BAC Work Plan Items
Note: suggested frequency is as follows: February for mid-year review;
31 Financial Status - Quarterly Update . . . . May for Q3 review; September for unaudited close (slipped to October);

Note: The * denotes that an item is on the BAC meeting agenda for the corresponding month in which the e is listed. The shading repr1nt4t the items have been completed.

November for Q1 review

Attachment,J.........
Page 4 of 5




BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE 2023 WORKPLAN
January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

1 2 3 4
Item # ACTIVITY/SUBJECT Q Q Q Q NOTES/RECOMMENDATIONS
20-Jan 15-Feb 15-Mar | 19-Apr 17-May 21-Jun | 19-Jul 16-Aug 20-Sep | 18-Oct 15-Nov 20-Dec

Schedule as needed
32 Financial Audit - Periodic Update . .
Recommendation:

Discuss the Financial Audit
Schedule as needed

33 Board's Auditor Pool RFP Status Update Recommendation:

Receive a status update regarding the Request for Proposal (RFP) for Board
Auditing Services

Note: The * denotes that an item is on the BAC meeting agenda for the corresponding month in which the e is listed. The shading repr1nt5t the items have been completed. AttaCh ment,,;lm 241M

Page 5 of 5




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

16



A Santa Clara Valley Water District

Valley Water

File No.: 22-1198 Agenda Date: 1/20/2023
Item No.: 4.2.

COMMITTEE AGENDA MEMORANDUM
Board Audit Committee

Government Code Section 84308 Applies: Yes [1 No
(If “YES” Complete Attachment A)

SUBJECT:
Status Update on the Implementation of Recommendations from the 2015 Consultant Contracts
Management Process Audit Conducted by Navigant Consulting, Inc. (Navigant).

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive an update on the implementation of the recommendations made by Navigant in the 2015
Consultant Contracts Management Process Audit and the Consultant Contracts Improvement
Process.

SUMMARY:

In 2014, Valley Water management commissioned an audit of the Consultant Contracts Post-Award
Management Process (Audit) after non-compliance events were identified in 2014. As a result,
Navigant completed a detailed compliance review of 66 consultant contracts. Navigant also reviewed
Valley Water’s policies, processes, and technology framework relevant to the post-award
management of consultant contracts.

The Audit resulted in 11 recommendations based on the extent to which compliance issues have
been present during the review period (2009 - 2014), and areas of improvement to the “as-is” post-
award contract management framework (including relevant policies, processes, and protocols).
Currently, there are 3 remaining audit recommendations pending completion or implementation.

Recommendation 1: inconsistent pre-award and post-award contract management processes and
decentralized recordkeeping;

Recommendation 7: the need to establish a standard for post-award compliance; and

Recommendation 8: the need to develop a process for consultant evaluation and compliance to
ensure accountability.

An update to the Board Audit Committee (BAC) was presented on February 16, 2022 and September
29, 2022. Following the update of the near completion of the audit recommendations, the Committee
requested additional information on the implementation of insurance compliance as part of the post-
award process.

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 1 of 2 Printed on 1/13/2023

1 7 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

File No.: 22-1198 Agenda Date: 1/20/2023
Item No.: 4.2.

This item is a follow-up to the February 16, 2022 and September 29, 2022 BAC discussion. Staff will
provide a presentation on the 3 pending audit recommendations to include implementation of a
vendor performance evaluation process, implementation of insurance compliance through Valley
Water's 3™ party provider, and an update on the development of a Valley Water Procurement Manual.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1;: PowerPoint

UNCLASSIFIED MANAGER:
Tony Ndah, 408-630-2208

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 2 of 2 Printed on 1/13/2023

1 8 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

Valley Water

Clean Water + Healthy Environment * Flood Protection

7 O’

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 13




Status Update on

Committee

mendations from the
anagement Process Audit
y Navigant Consulting, Inc. (Navigant)

1lleywater.org

January 20, 2023

0 Attachment 1



AGENDA

Background

EBIX Insurance Certification
Management

Vendor Performance
Evaluation

Procurement Manual

/‘é./ Valley Water 21 Attachment 1
Page 3 of 13



BACKGROUND

* BAC Presentation on February 16, 2022

* Follow-up presentation requested on implementation of insurance
compliance

* Inquiry on how EBIX interfaces with INFOR and Planet Bids

e CIP Committee on September 1, 2022
e Update on Vendor Performance Evaluation

e BAC Presentation on September 29, 2022

* Lower Silver Creek and Construction Change Order Audit Progress
Reports

/—é/ Valley Water 22 Attachment 1
Page 4 of 13



INSURANCE CERTIFICATION MANAGEMENT -
EBIX

International supplier of on-demand infrastructure exchanges.

Service provider that reviews certificates of insurance for compliance

E B X . Tracks near expiration of certificates
. Direct communication with contractors on behalf of Valley Water

/‘é./ Valley Water 23 Attachment 1
Page 5 of 13



OVERVIEW OF PROCUREMENT PROCESS

Infor Cloudsuibe

Systemn of Record For: Requisition, Buyyer
Info, PO, SOW, Final Agreement, Budget,

GL, Imvoices, etc

infor Cloudsuite

Enters
REQUIStHOM,
Budget Code,
SO, BtC.

Requisiticn
Assigned o
Bunpar

/‘Q/ Valley Water
(S J

wendor
selected,
Megotiaticn of
Ts and C's,
Pricing, Fimal
SO, Bt

RFP Reqguired Per EL"s

Planet Bids

nsurance Walidatson

Contrack
Approval {Board,
Mon-Board] as
appropriate.
Issuance of PO,
[= (o

Attachment 1
Page 6 of 13



OVERVIEW OF PROCUREMENT PROCESS
(CONT.

Infor Cloudsuite (Free Body Diagram)

Contract
Approval (Board,
nsurance Validation Mon-Board) as
Required appropriate.

Issuance of PO,
w endor,
Insurance Requirements

etc.
EBIX Connection Buyer EBIX Service

Facilitates w/ Risk
Manager Professional Service

Function: Provides a point in time report
of initial insurance endorsements.

hMonitoring l
< Emails ."j " _ Provides ongoing monitoring of

compliance. Alerts of non-compliance.
(1]
Nl:m-(:c:m:::lian:cnal_‘pIr

Alerts, Vendors .
Initial Endorsements System of Record For: N/A

Imitial
Endorsements

VW File Server

Attachment 1

/‘Q/ Valley Water
~ age 7 of 13




I
VENDOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (VPE)

Purpose and Scope

Used to evaluate vendor’s performance

Applicable to Goods, Services and Construction contracts

Standardized internal tool

Reviews Conducted by VW Project Managers with on-going support from Procurement
Representative.

/‘é./ Valley Water 26 Attachment 1

Page 8 of 13



VENDOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (VPE)

Evaluation Frequency

The frequency of evaluations will be based on the duration of the agreement.

Agreement Duration Frequency of Evaluations

Less than 1 year A final evaluation at the end of the agreement or project

Multi-year (1) At the end of each milestone,
(2) at the annual anniversary of the agreement, and
(3) a final evaluation at the end of agreement

/é Valley Water 27 Attachment 1
Page 9 of 13



VENDOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Scoring

e Performance evaluations shall conform to the requirements of the agreement
* Each question rates the vendor on whether they met or did not meet the terms of the agreement.

e “1” point is awarded where the vendor met the contractual requirements and accomplished
the scope of services.
 “0” points are awarded where the vendor do not meet contractual requirements, and recovery
is not likely in a timely manner.
o Also includes situations where the vendor’s corrective actions appear inadequate or
ineffective.

 Where there is insufficient information to rate a vendor’s performance on any question, the
question will be marked as “N/A”
e Question will not be scored as part of the evaluation of the vendor's performance

/é./ Valley Water 28 I:,?\a’[;aec?{)nzp’;;



VENDOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Follow-up with Vendor and Objections

* Procurement Representative will reach out and obtain Vendor comments and countersignature for
all completed evaluations.

* |f a vendor does not agree with the evaluation score, they must submit objections in writing, with
supporting evidence, within ten (10) business days following receipt of the report.

* Valley Water’s sole discretion whether the score shall be amended and/or a replacement
evaluation issued.

/é./ Valley Water 29 F,‘Aat;aec?qnngg



PROCUREMENT MANUAL

. Contains the procurement processes, policies, and procedures to assist procurement personnel
and Valley Water employees.

. Provides essential information to procure supplies, materials, equipment, general services,
professional consulting services, and construction services.

. Status Update and Next Steps:

o Finalize manual by end of Q3 in FY23

/‘é./ Valley Water 30 Attachment 1

Page 12 of 13



QUESTIONS




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

32



A Santa Clara Valley Water District

Valley Water
File No.: 22-1273 Agenda Date: 1/20/2023
Item No.: 4.3.
COMMITTEE AGENDA MEMORANDUM
Board Audit Committee
Government Code § 84308 Applies: Yes [ No
(If “YES” Complete Attachment A - Gov. Code § 84308)
SUBJECT:

2014 Transparency Compliance Audit Recommendation Status Update and Provide Guidance to
Staff Regarding Follow-up on Completed Management Actions.

RECOMMENDATION:
A. Receive and discuss the 2014 Transparency Compliance Audit Recommendation Status
Update; and
B. Provide guidance to staff regarding Follow-up on Completed Management Actions.

SUMMARY:

The Santa Clara Valley Water District Board of Directors (the Board) commissioned an external,
independent audit of Valley Water’s transparency activities, upon recommendation by the Board Audit
Committee (BAC), at the July 9, 2013, Board Meeting.

The purpose of the Transparency Compliance Audit and Benchmarking Review was to (1) assess
Valley Water’s compliance with key transparency and accountability requirements mandated by
applicable California Government regulations; (2) benchmark Valley Water’s current activities against
leading practices for transparency and open government; and (3) identify areas for continued
improvement and innovation.

An independent auditing firm, TAP International, was selected through Valley Water's competitive
request for proposal process on February 11, 2014. Work on the audit began on February 18, 2014.
Audit activities were completed in October 2014 and the final audit report was issued on November 5,
2014.

TAP International provided the Board Audit Committee with a walk-through of the audit findings and
recommendations contained in the Transparency Compliance Audit summary presentation and the
final report (Attachment 1), and staff provided the CEO Memo and Staff- Level Response at audit
committee meetings held on February 2 and 5, 2015.

At the April 15, 2015, Board Audit Committee's meeting, staff reviewed with committee members the
audit report findings, observations, and recommendations. A draft Audit Committee Summary of

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 1 of 2 Printed on 1/13/2023

33 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

File No.: 22-1273 Agenda Date: 1/20/2023
Item No.: 4.3.

Recommendations and Responses was developed by staff to reflect the Committee’s actions and
direction in response to the audit recommendations.

In total, there were 22 recommendations identified. All but one recommendation had been addressed
prior to today’s update. The remaining recommendation, #19, recommends staff “Meet on a quarterly
basis with executive leadership, mid-level managers, and staff to analyze performance data to
assess Valley Water’s progress and identify improvements in processes to accomplish Valley Water’s
key strategic goals.” Staff worked with a consultant to develop a set of metrics based on the Board’s
strategic goals (Attachment 2). The metrics have been reviewed by stakeholders and executive
management. Staff is in the process of establishing an on-going reporting schedule.

With the implementation of this recommendation, all 22 recommendations from the 2014
Transparency Compliance Audit have been addressed. The BAC is requested to receive and discuss
the status and provide guidance to staff, as necessary.

The BAC may also authorize the CAE to conduct an evaluation of effectiveness to determine if the
implementations have had the desired effect/outcomes.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1: Transparency Compliance Audit Review
Attachment 2: Valley Water Ends Policies Outcome Measures

UNCLASSIFIED MANAGER:
Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 2 of 2 Printed on 1/13/2023

34 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

SANTA CLARA VALLEY
WATER DISTRICT
TRANSPARENCY
COMPLIANCE AUDIT
AND BENCHMARKING
REVIEW

FINAL REPORT

November 2014

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND
BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Contents
Section I: Executive Summary

Why the District Requested the Review
Review Goals

Summary

Conclusions

Recommendations

Section Il: Background

Scope

Methodology

Section Ill: Key Results

1.

The District is in Compliance with Virtually All Transparency and Accountability
Requirements

Public Records Act Implementation is Exemplary

Execution of Some Compliance Activities Can Be Enhanced

The District is Positioned to Build on Current Successes to Advance Management
Practices Through Additional Transparency and Accountability

The District Is On Par With Implementing Leading Practices in Comparison to
Other Water Agencies Comparisons

Public Stakeholder Committee Provides Input on Leading Practices

Appendix I: Professional Profiles - Blue Ribbon Panel of Experts

ﬁ TAP International, Inc.

36

1|Page

AP wWNDN

~

13

14

16

22

43

45

47

Attachment 1
Page 2 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Section I: Executive Summary

Why the District Requested the Review

The Santa Clara Valley Water District (District) is the major water resource agency for the Silicon Valley,
serving over two million residents and 12 retail organizations and cities. In recent years, the District
revamped its management team by hiring professionals to conduct work for watershed management,
administration, as well as governance and accountability.

An oversight report, issued in 2009 by an external reviewer, raised issues about budgeting, oversight,
governance, civic engagement, reporting, and performance management. While the District had
addressed prior audit report findings, the recent changes in its management structure provided an
opportunity to assess the status of the District’s efforts to become a premier water agency nationally.
This current external review provides an opportunity to benchmark the District’s current transparency
and accountability activities against the leading practices in public management.

It is important to note that this review focused on the administrative and governance functions of the
District. However, effective transparency and accountability regarding budgeting, oversight,
governance, civic engagement, and performance management is only accomplished through the full
cooperation and participation of all Divisions within the District. The recommendations in this report
advance the District’s public management practices to position the District as a national model of
service to the public.

Review Goals

This report (1) assesses the District’'s compliance with key transparency and accountability
requirements mandated by applicable California Government regulations; (2) benchmarks the
District’s current activities against leading practices for transparency and open government; and, (3)
identifies areas for continued improvement and innovation in support of the District’s goal in becoming
a national leader.

TAP International selected 37 key California regulations and statutory requirements for transparency
and accountability to assess the District’s level of compliance. Also, TAP International, among other
activities, engaged outside experts to publicly discuss leading practices in public management. Thirty-
six leading practices were identified and discussed applicable to civic engagement, performance
management, budgeting, oversight, and board governance. Among other activities, the principals of
TAP International then met with the District’s senior leadership and staff (throughout each level of the
organization) to identify gaps between the leading practices and current District practices. See page 7
for a detailed description of the activities performed for this review.

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 2|Page

37 Attachment 1
Page 3 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Summary

The District performs exceptionally well in a common component of governance: compliance with
key state codes and regulations. As shown in Figure 1.0, the District was in full compliance with 95
percent of the 37 requirements that we examined. In addition, we noted exemplary performance in
the District’s implementation of the Public Records Act. See pagel4 for additional information.

Figure 1.0: District Compliance with Key Transparency and Accountability
Requirements

35, 95%

2,5%

Fully Compliant Nearly Compliant

The results of our benchmarking portion of this review against leading practices among five public
management areas show many successes by the District. Leading practices are unique practices applied
by leading organizations. When performing benchmarking analysis against leading practices, any gaps
between current and leading practices should not be viewed as weaknesses, problems, or any other
type of deficit. Instead, the gaps should be viewed as goals for organizations who desire to build great
organizations. As shown in Figure 2.0, the District is aligned with 16 leading practices. The successes

Figure 2.0: District Alignment to Leading Practices

16
12
8
Alignment to Leading Practices Leading Practices that the District Has Leading Practices for Future
the Necessary Assets to Fully Implement Consideration
"ﬁ' TAP International, Inc. 3|Page

3 8 Attachment 1

Page 4 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

of the District in these 16 areas show that the District is poised to implement the remaining 12 leading
practices. In the long-term, another eight goals could be considered for full implementation by the
District should it choose to develop the required assets for their implementation.

In group discussions, District employees notably embraced the principles of continuous process
improvement. This dynamic encourages open dialogue and helps to identify problems as early as
possible to break down barriers to change.

The District’s alignment with selected leading practices is similar with two other water agencies
included in our review.

Conclusions

The successes of the District in aligning many of its activities with leading practices —and accomplishing
a virtually perfect record of compliance — demonstrates that the District is a mature organization that
is ready to implement other leading practices that would advance its goal to become a national leader
among water agencies. The District is currently implementing efforts to enhance its organizational
culture, which is a primary driver of performance and a key factor influencing the District’s ultimate
success. Because the District has not yet fully developed a culture of performance management and
continuous process improvement, the District would need to ensure these areas are a priority among
the leadership, management, and staff levels of the organizations.

Recommendations

To advance to the next generation of transparency and accountability activities, the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) should consider implementing the following:

Structural changes

1. Transfer all compliance responsibilities, including the Statement of Economic Interests
responsibilities, to the Office of Ethics and Corporate Governance. In the transfer, the CEO
should delegate proper authority to the Ethics and Corporate Governance Director to affect a
change of procedures and processes, as well as to ensure that sufficient resources are available
for effective implementation.

2. Reorganize the Internal Audit Unit to formulate a Business Intelligence Unit that includes
business intelligence analysis and program evaluation in support of continuous process
improvement efforts and performance monitoring. To support business analysis activities,
assign at least three additional positions.

3. Integrate the functions of the Office of Government Relations and the Communications Unit
to coordinate effective engagement and coordination.

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 4|Page

39 Attachment 1

Page 5 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Strategic changes

4. Update the District’s strategic plan with the active engagement of the community, the Board
of Directors, District staff, and management. The strategic plan should include the most critical
goals and objectives that link directly to the District’s mission.

5. Develop a District-wide civic engagement plan that addresses the following:

* Goals for engagement;

» Criteria for providing financial sponsorships to organizations that are directly related to the
mission of the District;

* Criteria that would drive decision-making on which events the Board of Directors should
attend, connecting the purpose of the event to the mission of the District;

* |dentification of non-traditional locations for outreach;

* Expansion of opportunities for Board engagement among other local officials, cities,
counties, special districts, and school districts to facilitate regional policy management of
watersheds, flood control, wildlife, and aesthetics; and,

* Initiate processes for planning and evaluating the effectiveness of civic engagement
efforts.

6. Facilitate a culture of continuous process improvement that encourages employees to discuss
problems. Mechanisms to initiate a culture of continuous process improvement include: (a)
rewarding employees for problem identification, (b) allowing open discussions of problems,
and (c) initiating conversations that rapidly identify problems.

7. Establish protocols for internal meetings that include the discussion of the following questions:
(a) What is the District trying to accomplish? (b) How will the District accomplish the activity
or goal? (c) How will success be defined? (d) What challenges exist that could potentially hinder
success? (e) What are the lessons from recent experiences?

8. Track and monitor the District’s key performance measures using software applications
available at the District.

9. Develop a District-wide information engagement plan that includes criteria on displaying
information and determining the usefulness of information from a customer perspective.
Delegate responsibility for preparing the information management plan to a project team
comprised of staff from all District divisions.

10. Establish a general fund operating reserve account with an appropriate level of revenues set

aside for emergencies, contingencies, or for use for General Fund operations when budgeted
revenue receipts fall below initial estimates.

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 5|Page

40 Attachment 1

Page 6 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

11. Initiate Board level discussions on the merit of reducing the 10-day meeting notice to facilitate
timely use of Agency resources.

12. Build budgets around water policy issues agreed upon by community stakeholders and clearly
convey in the budget a shared sense of the priorities of the District.

13. Involve the public in budgeting by: (a) holding public discussions on budget priorities; (b)
showing the public how to read budgets; and, (c) coordinating informal discussions or meetings
to discuss key issues, such as rate setting and how budget priorities are established.

14. Utilize performance data to drive decision-making on allocating resources to accomplish
District goals and objectives.

15. Implement strategic activities that directly align with District’s goals.

Operational changes

16. Display the District’s mission prominently and with clarity on the web site and on all District
communication publications.

17. Establish metrics of success for advisory committees that report to the Board, such as
timeliness to develop analysis and action plans; outcomes derived from implementing the
action plans; and, the percentage of recommendations adopted by the Board.

18. Establish core metrics that link to the District’s mission, goals, and objectives. Visibly connect
these core metrics with actual expenditures and conduct formal evaluation and monitoring of
the metrics.

19. Meet on a quarterly basis with District leadership, mid-level managers, and staff to analyze
performance data to assess the District’s progress and identify improvements in processes to

accomplish the District’s key strategic goals.

20. Consider developing mechanisms to facilitate discussion of operational and strategic issues
among mid-level managers and staff.

Business process improvements

21. Streamline supervisory signoff on contracts, Board agenda packets, and hiring of staff.

22. Revise the District’s claim for reimbursement form to add a description of the purpose of the
function attended.

After implementing the above initiatives, the District may consider developing a plan that publishes
the District’s successful practices in national journals and presentations at national conferences.

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 6|Page

41 Attachment 1
Page 7 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Section Il: Background

Santa Clara Valley Water District, with an annual $471.9 million operating and capital improvement
budget, manages an integrated water resources system that includes the supply of clean, safe water,
flood protection, and stewardship of streams on behalf of Santa Clara County’s 1.8 million residents.
The District manages 10 dams and surface water reservoirs, three water treatment plants, an advanced
recycled water purification center, a state-of-the-art water quality laboratory, nearly 400 acres of
groundwater recharge ponds and more than 275 miles of streams. The District sells water and provides
groundwater management to local municipalities and private water retailers who deliver drinking
water directly to homes and businesses in Santa Clara County. The cities and towns served by the
District include: Campbell, Cupertino, Gilroy, Los Altos, Los Altos Hills, Los Gatos, Milpitas, Monte
Sereno, Morgan Hill, Mountain View, Palo Alto, San Jose, Santa Clara, Saratoga, and Sunnyvale.

The District’s highest-level priorities are encompassed in three Board policies: (1) clean, reliable water;
(2) natural flood protection; and, (3) healthy creeks and ecosystems.

To support these priorities, the District administers a wide range of programs and public services,
including but not limited to:

e Treatment and testing to ensure water quality;
e \Water conversation efforts;

e Pipeline reliability;

e Dam storage and safety;

e Flood protection; and,

e Creek cleanup.

Over the next decade, the District will invest approximately S2 billion on high priority repairs and
improvements of District infrastructure.

Three officers appointed by the Board support the District’s activities. The officers are the Chief
Executive Officer, District Counsel, and the Clerk of the Board. The CEO is supported by the Chief
Operating Officer of the Water Utility Division, the Chief Operating Officer of the Watersheds Division,
the Chief Administrative Officer of the District, and the Director of Ethics and Corporate Governance.
Individuals for three of the seven leadership positions were hired within the last two years. The
District’s leadership is responsible for 30 business units and 672 full and part-time employees, who
provide the required administrative and technical support for the various programs, services, and
projects. At the time of our review, the District had 731 authorized positions.

Scope

TAP International developed a review process specifically for the District, comparing the level of
compliance by the District to eight California codes and statutes, convening four national experts for a
public discussion that benchmarked agency activities against leading practices regarding: Board

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 7|Page

42 Attachment 1

Page 8 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

governance, oversight, civic engagement, budgeting, and performance management activities, and
conducting individual meetings with over a dozen District managers, directors, and staff; and
implemented three focus groups involving the participation of about 30 employees among all levels of
the District.

Methodology

Compliance Audit

To examine compliance with selected California Codes, we reviewed documents, analyzed data, and
interviewed 10 employees to discuss compliance activities. Detailed activities we performed are shown
below:

Verified District compliance to California Regulation Code Section 53235 — Ethics Training by:

* Assessing compliance for ethics training for all Board members;
* Reviewing District employee training activities; and,
* Interviewing the Director of Ethics and Corporate Governance.

Verified District compliance to California Code Section 6250, the Public Records Act by:

* Obtaining 2013 annual reports to verify timeliness of response to requests for information;

e Submitting public records request to perform spot test on the accuracy of the District’s
turnaround time report;

* ldentifying the existence and availability of key public records on the District’s web site;
* Physically observing space available to view public records; and,
* Interviewing the Public Records Unit Manager.

Verified District compliance to California Regulation Code Section 54950, 54952 — The Ralph M. Brown
Act by:

* Examining all 2014 public agenda and minutes for Board meetings (10), and verifying
compliance with five requirements.

» Performing physical observation of posting of meeting notices;
* Reviewing Board policies and other documents for Brown Act policies and procedures; and,
* Interviewing the Clerk of the Board and District management on Brown Act activities.

Verified District compliance to California Regulation Code Section 53891, 53892 — Annual Financial
Transaction Report by:

e Obtaining the District’s 2013 Annual Financial Transaction Report and testing for key
compliance activities, (i.e. timeliness, reporting of revenue and expenditures, and obligations
as required by State code);

» Verifying submission of the 2012 and 2013 Annual Financial Transaction Reports with the
California State Controller’s Office;

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 8|Page

43 Attachment 1

Page 9 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

» Comparing financial data reported on the Annual Financial Transaction Report to data reported
on the Consolidated Annual Financial Report (Audited financial statements); and,
* Interviewing Finance Division managers and staff.

Verified District compliance to California Regulation Code Section 26909, 12410.6 - Annual Financial
Audit by:

* Reviewing financial statements (FY 2010-2013) to determine the data of completion of annual
audit;

* Verifying submission of the annual financial audits to State Controller’s Office; and,

* Verifying District hiring of an external auditor to conduct its annual financial audit.

Verified District compliance to California Regulation Code Section 53232.2 (b), 53065.5 —
Reimbursements by:

» Verifying eight reimbursement reports for four Board members (randomly selected) for 2013
and 2014 made available on the District’s web site to verify compliance for appropriateness in
the type of reimbursement, the reasonableness of the expenses, and oversight by the Board
Clerk;

* Reviewing Board reimbursement policies to verify compliance with State requirements;

* Interviewing Finance Division staff responsible for processing reimbursement claims; and,

* Interviewing the Clerk of the Board who is responsible for overseeing the collection and review
of reimbursement claims submitted by Board members.

Verified District compliance to California Regulation Code Section 81000 and 82000 - Conflict of
Interest/ Form 700 Statement of Economic Interests by:

* Reviewing Board policies and procedures;

* Analyzing system generated reports to identify number of persons who have not complied with
annual reporting requirements for 2013;

* Reviewing data on the number of vendors complying with reporting requirements;

* Analyzing positions that completed Statement of Economic Interests with the positions listed
on the District’s Conflict of Interest code;

e Testing the ability of the system used to submit Statement of Economic Interests to identify
incomplete forms;

* Reviewing other agency documentation, correspondence, and workflow maps; and,

* Interviewing the Clerk of the Board staff, procurement, Office of Government Relations, Ethics
and Corporate Governance Division, and District Counsel on District implementation activities.

This review compared compliance activities with three other water agencies. These water agencies are
the Sonoma County Water Agency, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, and the San
Diego County Water Authority. Where information was available, the results were incorporated into
this report.

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 9|Page

4 4 Attachment 1

Page 10 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

TAP International conducted the compliance audit from February 2014 through June 2014 in
accordance with the formal guidelines of generally accepted government auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to
provide a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on our audit objectives. We believe
the evidence obtained provides a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on our
audit objectives.

Benchmarking Analysis

To benchmark District activities in key public management areas, TAP International reviewed
documentation, analyzed data, interviewed dozens of District employees, conducted three focus
groups, and compared agency activities against leading practices described by a panel of public
management experts.

Detailed activities TAP International performed are as follows:

. Met with the Audit Committee and District executive management to discuss and identify their
concerns for each public management issue;

. Structured the review to address transparency and accountability issues within five key areas:
(1) civic engagement (2) performance management (3) budgeting (4) oversight, and (5) Board
governance.

. Formulated specific themes identified from the Board member and executive management
meetings that would form the basis of subsequent discussion by the Blue Ribbon Panel.

Identified District practices and activities in each public management area by:

. Reviewing Board policies and District procedures, reports, newsletters, performance
management documents reports, budget reports, correspondence, outreach activities, and
publications;

. Interviewing dozens of District staff across multiple units, such as Watershed and Utilities,
Communications and Customer Relations Unit, Ethics and Corporate Governance, District
Counsel, Clerk of the Board, Finance, Procurement, and Administration on how the District
administers each public management area. The areas of discussion variously included:

o  Aligning capital budget process with the operating budget;

Performance based budgeting;

Translating numbers to impact;

Monitoring of organizational trends;

Internal audit operations;

Performance management frameworks and systems;

Performance monitoring;

Translating results into managerial decision-making and action;

Carver Model of Board Governance;

Interagency collaboration and coordination;

Public participation in setting priorities; and,

Communication and collaboration between advisory groups and the Board;

0O O 0O 0O 0 OO0 O O O O

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 10| Page

45 Attachment 1

Page 11 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

. Identifying District activities for each public management area; and,
. Summarizing the key facts of District operations to facilitate understanding by public
management experts.

Convened a Blue Ribbon Panel Symposium to identify leading practices in five public management
areas by:

. Coordinating and facilitating a Blue Ribbon Panel Symposium on leading public agency
practices that was held on May 9, 2014. An audio/videotape of the Symposium is posted on
the District’s web site at valleywater.org; and,

. Selecting four public management experts to serve on the Panel who have extensive
experience on the national and/or California stage researching what works and what does not
work among each of the public management areas that we reviewed, including water policy
and management. Prior to the Symposium, TAP International provided each Panel member
with background information and other key agency documents describing the District’s
structure and activities. The Panel members reviewed the information and evaluated
information contained on the District’s web site. TAP International also provided additional
information about District operations in response to various questions from the expert
panelists. Appendix | shows the professional profile of each of the panelists. *

Convened a Public Stakeholder Committee by:

. Having the District conduct public outreach to recruit residents interested in serving on the
Committee. Of the seven persons who expressed interest, five attended the first meeting to
discuss the approach to the benchmarking component of the review. All members were
invited to attend the Blue Ribbon Symposiums and subsequent meetings.

Benchmarked District activities to leading practices by:

* Developing a matrix to compare current activities by the District with the leading practices
identified by the Blue Ribbon Panel.

Benchmarked District activities to other California water agencies by:

e Reviewing the activities performed for each public management area among three other water
agencies: San Diego County Water Authority, Metropolitan Water District of Southern
California, and Sonoma County Water Agency. These water agencies were selected because
of their known reputation for implementing one or more of notable practices among the five
public management areas issues included in our review. A member of the public stakeholder
committee disagreed with our selection of water agencies because we excluded agencies that
conducted flood control activities. Adding agencies that conduct flood control activities would

1 While there are many other leading practices developed among other subject areas, our scope of work
involved examining District activities among five public management areas: civic engagement, performance
management, oversight, Board governance, and budgeting.

:9 TAP International, Inc. 11| Page

46 Attachment 1

Page 12 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

have had no substantial impact on our findings, as the areas TAP International reviewed are
common public management functions.

Conducted three focus groups to identify challenges or barriers that would prevent the District from
moving forward in becoming a national leader by:

* ldentifying employees that had attended the Blue Ribbon Panel Symposium of leading
practices;

* Organizing the development of three focus groups with each group representing various
positions within the District (leadership, mid-level management, and staff positions); and,

* Asking each focus group to identify successes of the District that align with leading practices
suggested by the Blue Ribbon Panel, and to describe challenges that would limit the District in
moving forward.

Agency Comments

TAP International invited all District staff who participated in the review to comment on the draft
report. Another two meetings, with about 30 District employees in attendance, were held to discuss
the draft report in detail. Updates to this report were made upon receiving supporting information to
verify the accuracy of the requested change. The Public Records Unit was the one unit that provided
the required information to verify suggested updates to the reports.

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 12| Page

47 Attachment 1

Page 13 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Section lll: Key Results — Compliance Audit

1. The District is in Compliance with
Virtually All Transparency and
Accountability Requirements

Created as a special district by an act of the California Legislature, the District is subject to statutes
and requirements that serve to facilitate fundamental public agency transparency and accountability
of operations. Key requirements include the following:

e California Government Code Section 53235 - If a local agency provides any type of
compensation, salary, or stipend to a member of a legislative body, or provides reimbursement
for actual and necessary expenses incurred by a member of a legislative body in the
performance of official duties, then all local agency officials shall receive training in ethics.

e Public Records Act, California Government Code Section 6250 — Every person has a right to
disclosable records promptly.

e Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government Code Section 54950, 54952 — All meetings of a
legislative body shall be open and public with posting of meeting notices at least three days in
advance of the meeting.

e (California Government Code Section 53891 and 53892 — Each local agency in charge of the
financial records shall furnish to the California State Controller a report of all of the financial
transactions of the local agency during the preceding year within 110 days after the close of
the fiscal year.

e (California Government Code Section 26909, 12410.6 — A certified public account or public
accountant must perform an annual audit of the accounts and records of the District.

e (California Government Code Section 81000 — Each local agency must designate the employees
subject to the conflict of interest code within the meaning of California Code section 87200.

e (California Government Code Section 87200 — An official or individual hired or leaving a position
covered by the District’s conflict of interest code must file Form 700, Statement of Economic
Interests with Santa Clara County. Section 87200 applies to individuals who contracts with or
whose employer contracts with state or local government agencies and who makes,
participates in making, or act in a staff capacity for making governmental decisions. The
District, in its Conflict of Interest Code, requires consultants who meet this criteria to file
Statement of Economic Interests.

e (California Government Code Section 53232.2 (b), 53065.5 — A local agency may compensate
members of a legislative body for attendance at the following occurrences: a meeting of the
legislative body, a meeting of an advisory body, a conference or organized education activity,
or for expenses incurred in the performance of official duties.

The results of the compliance audit show the District was generally in compliance with all eight key
statutes. Specifically, the District was in full compliance with 35 of 37 key requirements among the
various Government Codes, as shown in Table 3.0. For the remaining two requirements, some of the

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 13| Page

48 Attachment 1

Page 14 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

District’s employees, contractors, or former employees had not completed Statement of Economic
Interests or ethics training although the District was nearly in full-compliance. While the number of
employees that failed to comply with requirements was less than 10, the District’s policy requires full
compliance with all of the statutes.

Table 3.0: District Compliance with Key Transparency and Accountability Statutes

Area Number of Number of Number of Number of
Requirements Requirements Requirements Requirements
Examined for in Full in Partial Not in
Compliance Compliance Compliance Compliance

California Public Records Act 4 4 0 0

Ralph M. Brown Act 11 11 0 0

Reimbursements 3 3 0 0

Conflict of Interest Code 3 3

Annual Statement of Economic 3 2 1* 0

Interests

Annual Financial Transactions 4 4 0 0

Report

Annual Financial Audit of 3 3 0 0

Operations

Ethics training 6 5 1%* 0

Total 37 35 2 0

*One employee did not file the required Statement of Economic Interests in 2013 upon departure from the
District.

**Less than 1 percent of eligible employees did not receive training in 2010. The District is in process of
meeting 2014 requirements for ethics training.

2. Public Records Act Implementation
is Exemplary

a.  The District Responds to Requests Quickly

The District responds to requests for public records and information in about half of the time required
by the policy of 10 days. Of the 382 public records requests received in 2013, the District required
about five days, on average, to respond to the request. Our own testing showed that the District beat
its own average by responding to our request for information in less than 24 hours. The response time
was quicker than the response time by three other water agencies that received the same type of
request.

& TAP International, Inc. 14| Page

49 Attachment 1

Page 15 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

About 77 percent of 382 requests received were for technical data and for documents related to
transparency, such as financial documents and other governance documents.

The remaining 23 percent of the requests were for information and documents maintained by other
public agencies. For these requests, District staff provided information to the requester on how and
where to obtain the needed information, providing customer service that is not required by State
regulation.

The Public Records Unit receives many requests for bid documents, rankings, agreements, and award
information. Occasionally, these types of public record requests lead to response delays by the District
because the requests for information are generally received during the year-end financial closing
period. As a result, the Records Units staff, who do not have direct access to detailed bid and contract
information, must wait for the procurement division to compile the information. Although the delays
have not adversely affected overall performance, the Records Unit continues to work with the
Procurement Division to develop a means to expedite responses to these types of requests.

b.  The Records Management Unit Applies Performance Management Principles

A key component of an effective performance management system is robust monitoring and
evaluation of service delivery. Using a myriad of performance reports, the Records Management Unit
routinely monitors performance trends on timeliness and on the type of information requested by the
public. The Unit uses the analysis to re-allocate resources to accommodate changing workload levels
and to ensure timely response to the requestor. In addition, the Records Unit uses the performance
reports to identify commonly requested information so that steps could be taken to provide access to
the documents on the District’s web page. Moreover, the Unit has set up different processes to
respond to various types of requests, which also facilitates a timely response.

c. The Records Unit’s Success Can be Attributed to the Skill Set of the Manager and Staff and
the Support of Executive Leadership

Other key features of an effective performance management system are to delegate authority and
responsibility for service delivery to managers and to have top-level support of necessary changes.
With an advanced degree in Library Sciences, the Manager of the Public Records Unit reported she was
delegated authority to determine how best to organize and retrieve information. While the Records
Manager acknowledged her educational background has contributed to the success of the Unit, she
explained through staff efforts and District executive management support, processes were changed
that led to other efficient ways to deliver performance.

:9 TAP International, Inc. 15| Page

50 Attachment 1

Page 16 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

3. Execution of Some Compliance
Activities Can Be Enhanced

a. Although in Compliance, the District Has Over-Formalized Ralph M. Brown Act Related
Processes

Accountability is the guiding principle that defines effective governance by: assigning ownership to
business processes and service delivery and, how we measure and report our progress, including how
we interact when discussing issues and problems. When accountability is implemented
inappropriately, it can undermine an organization’s ability to achieve its desired results. In some cases,
the more an organization creates accountability, the less accountable is the organization. When this
occurs, employees react against the procedures set-up to accomplish accountability because
compliance takes too much time or energy. Effective accountability reduces the time and energy that
employees spend on business processes and service delivery.

The Ralph M. Brown Act (Brown Act) was created by the California Legislature to facilitate both
transparency and accountability. Specifically, the Brown Act requires a minimum of three days advance
notice to the public about upcoming meetings of elected officials. At the District, the Board meets bi-
monthly to discuss and make decisions concerning matters affecting, among other things, District
policies and operations. In preparation of the Board meetings, the District’s policy under EL 7.10 is to
require 10 days advance notice to the public. The District opted for the 10-day advance notice because
of its desire to be transparent to the citizens served by the District. The 10-day notice exceeds state
notification requirements, including notice requirements implemented among the other water
agencies we reviewed. In addition, the 10-day notice requirement exceeds the six day minimum notice
requirement established by Assembly Bill 466 and approved by the Governor in October 1999. The six
day minimum notice applies to public Board meetings except for reports related to contracts, reports
recommending Board action regarding meeting a legal deadline, reports from a public committee, or
meetings to address urgent health, safety, or financial matters.

TAP International found:

¢ While the intent of the 10-day meeting notice is noteworthy, the policy has had an adverse
effect on operational performance. To meet the 10-day notice requirement, District staff
must have agency documents, memos, and other reports ready for the agenda within the
same time period. Because of the time required to prepare some documents, the Clerk of
the Board does not always receive the required documents for the agenda items, leading
to modification of Board agendas and the updating of meeting notices. From January to
March 2014, the Clerk of the Board modified 18 of the 24 meeting agendas originally
posted within 10 days of the meetings. The Clerk of the Board explained that agenda
revisions occur because staff does not submit information on time. According to District
staff, the 10-day lead time is difficult to work with because the memos and reports
required for the agenda packet are not always completed that far in advance. With so

:9 TAP International, Inc. 16| Page

51 Attachment 1
Page 17 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

many modifications, the accountability and transparency sought by the District is not fully
effective.

¢ The District over-formalizes the review of meeting agendas. When the District finalizes the
Board meeting monthly agenda, a key requirement includes the review and approval of
the agenda by nine management officials. While the intent may be to increase
accountability of the content and accuracy of the information submitted to the Board, the
level of signatures required has had an opposite effect. For example, one senior
management explained that although many of the signatures are present, he continues to
find needed corrections to the information submitted in the Board packet because, while
other officials have signed off on the agenda packet, it does not necessarily mean that
officials have reviewed the materials. The panel of public management experts agreed
that proper accountability is to have one person, the CEO, review and provide approval of
the agenda.

b. Reviewing for Accountability Could be Made
Easier in Reviewing Claims for Reimbursements

California Government Code Section 53232.2(b) states that Board members can submit claims for
reimbursement of expenses incurred while acting in official capacity, which includes attending
meetings, conferences and educational activities. A key requirement on whether or not expenses are
reimbursable is the determination of whether the expense is necessary to the performance of the
Board member’s official duties. Per the District’s policies, the types of expenses that are necessary and
generally submitted for reimbursements are mileage, meals, airfare, lodging, conference registration,
and car rental expenses.

TAP International:

¢ In contrast to the three other water agencies, the District provides excellent transparency
in posting the reimbursement reports of each Board member on its web site.

¢ The District’s enabling legislation requires that when Board members attend events, those
events must be related to the mission of the District. However, we could not determine
the extent that Board members complied with the requirement because the purpose of
the event attended by the Board member is not clearly described on the reimbursement
form. Having this type of detail recorded on the reimbursement forms would strengthen
accountability regarding Board members’ representation at community meetings, and
would more closely align with California Government Code 53232.3 (b), which states that
those requesting reimbursement must show that their request falls within the parameters
for use of public resources.

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 17| Page

52 Attachment 1

Page 18 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

c. Form 700 Filings Could Benefit from Added Clarity

California Government Code Section 81000 through 91015 of the Political Reform Act 7200 establishes
a set of duties that public officials must perform to ensure that public management is properly
conducted regarding issues involving some type of economic interest. Public officials who act or make
decisions that have financial impact on the organization, including contractors, are required to
complete a Statement of Economic Interest. The Statement must be filed when assuming the position,
annually, and then again upon leaving the position. The filing official of the District, who resides in the
Clerk of the Board office, is responsible for ensuring compliance with the filing requirements. The filing
requirements, such as who within the District are required to file and the extent of financial disclosure
needed, is described in the District’s Conflict of Interest Code. At the time of our review, the Code
delegated about 90 types of District positions (including consultant positions) to file a Statement of
Economic Interest. The Political Reform Act prescribes that no official, at any level of organization,
shall make, participate in making, or in any way attempt to use the official’s position to influence a
decision when the official knows or has reason to know that the official has a financial interest in the
decision. An “‘official” is defined as a member, officer, employee or consultant. A “’decision”’ is defined
as making a final determination, compelling or preventing a governmental decision, or making a
recommendations. A “consultant” is any individual who provides, under contract, information, advice,
recommendation, or counsel to the District.

“wi |II

TAP International found:

¢ In 2013 and 2014, nearly all of the 240 District employees who are required to file,
submitted a Statement of Economic Interest. According to the District’s filing official, the
largest challenge is the timely filing of departing and newly hired employees. To facilitate
timely filings, the District now requires personal contact information for employees leaving
the agency.

¢ The District could benefit from consistently applying its Conflict of Interest Code regarding
consultants. The District requires consultants to file a Statement of Economic Interest
(Form 700). Under the District’s Form 700 filing policy, a “consultant” means a contracted
individual who: (a) makes a governmental decision or (b) provides services in a staff
capacity with the agency and in that capacity participates in making a governmental
decision. To assist District employees in making a filing determination for consultants,
program managers must complete forms that assess and verify independence. However,
general confusion exists among program managers serving as contract analysts on the
interpretation of the criteria regarding governmental decisions. Procurement officials,
who have no authority requiring District staff to submit Form 700s for consultants,
explained that some District divisions do not believe consultants should be required to file.
In other divisions, managers interpret District policies more broadly and require
consultants to file.

¢ The general confusion about consulting filings have led to:

ﬁ TAP International, Inc. 18| Page

53 Attachment 1

Page 19 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

o Requiring consultants to file who may not necessarily have to file. The filing official
reported that under the current implementation of the District’s policy, consultants
are asked to file but are not necessarily subject to filing. For example, consultants
hired to perform stakeholder outreach on the Groundwater Charge Zone Study
were asked to file by their contract managers, but according to the filing official,
these consultants may not have been subject to the requirement. Some District
managers and contract liaisons believe that all consultants are required to file,
while others interpret the requirement differently. Other liaisons are not sure how
to implement the policies.

o  Exempting consultants from filing against the opinion of the filing official. For
example, the District Counsel allowed the exemption of a contractor who engaged
in lobbying activities on behalf of the District. Although the Office of Government
Relations explained that the lobbyist works at their direction, one of the District’s
criterions that trigger filing is whether the consultant influences decision. The
District Counsel’s office ruled that because the contractor had a relationship with
the District for less than one year, an exemption was acceptable. The filing official
explained that past decisions by the Fair Political Practices Commission was relied
upon as the basis for the District Counsel’s office decision. According to the District
Counsel’s office, the consultant would need to be serving for one year or more to
be considered acting in a staff capacity.

o  Consultant filings are not reviewed for potential conflicts of interest. Procurement
unit management explained that their staff, or staff from other component units,
does not have the experience or expertise with FPPC rules and regulations to
perform the review activity.

As of August 2014, the District’s filing official and the Procurement unit continued to work on the
District’s procedures for consultant filings® to address general confusion and to streamline the current
size of the filing packet.

To fully resolve outstanding issues and concerns, the District will need to consolidate leadership over
Form 700 compliance and clearly establish decision-making authority. At the time of our review, the
District fragmented authority for two statutory requirements, whose outcomes are driven by the other
requirement. Specifically, the District’s Conflict of Interest Code stipulates requirements for filing
Statement of Economic Interests and the District’s procedures for filing Statement of Economic
Interests are influenced by requirements contained in the Conflict of Interest Code, particularly the
types of filings to be performed by employees and consultants. However, Form 700 work instructions
designates the Clerk of the Board as the primary administrator for the filings, and the Deputy Director
of the Office of Corporate Governance and Ethics as the official responsible for ensuring compliance
with the Conflict of Interest Code. Dividing responsibility for implementing and complying with two

2 The District’s filing officials and procurement staff should be commended for their efforts to implement and
address Form 700 filing requirements, especially in ensuring that consultants file. In March 2014, 13 consultants
had filed and, by August 2014, all consultants required to file since the District’s adoption of the Form 700 filing
requirements have filed (47). Consultants on contract with the District prior to the adoption of District’s filing
procedures have not been required to file.

ﬁ TAP International, Inc. 19| Page

5 4 Attachment 1

Page 20 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

related requirements among two separate units adds complexity to an already cumbersome process.
The Los Angeles Metropolitan Water District consolidated these compliance activities under the
agency’s Ethics Officer.

d. Annual Financial Transaction Report Filing Provides an Opportunity to Enhance Business
Processes

Under California Government Code Section 53891 and 53892, the District must furnish to the State
Controller an electronic report of all its financial transactions within 110 days after the close of the
fiscal year. Although not a State requirement, it is expected that public agencies file the reports
accurately.

We found:

¢ Although the District filed timely reports for FY 2012 through FY 2013, the latest report
was not filed as accurately as it should have been because the District had used unaudited
financial data to prepare the report. The District relied on unaudited financial data
because its financial audit begins 90 days after year-end closing allowing insufficient time
to use audited financial data in preparation of the Annual Financial Transaction Report.?
As a result, for the upcoming FY 2014 filing, the District will need to make a material
adjustment of $2.9 million in the General Fund balance shown on the FY 2013 report, offset
by corresponding increases in the fund balances of all the other funds. While filing on
time provides for one component of accountability, it is not effective accountability or
transparency when the reports do not fully represent the financial activities of the District.
Finance staff explained that using audited financial data is not a state requirement and
that under reported amount is small in comparison to the District’s total budget.

¢ In contrast to the District, many public agencies, including large agencies, use the public
accounting firms they have hired to perform their financial statement audit to submit the
required financial transactions report to the State Controller. This way, the contracted
firm is accountable for submitting timely and accurate reports to the State of California. If

3 The District’s fiscal year-end close out process allows vendors to submit invoices for the fiscal year-end through
July 25th. By having a deadline of June 30 or shortly thereafter for invoice submissions, organizations eliminate
a delay in the close-out process and can generally begin the financial audit earlier, leading to more accurate
filings. Finance office staff explained that, generally, accounting standards require the recording of all June
invoices for the same fiscal year incurred and that changing the deadline for June invoices from vendors is not
possible because it will require up to four accounting entries. According to Finance staff, the District would have
to capture these invoices as accruals rather than actual expenses. Other large agencies notify vendors in March
to submit June invoices on June 30 or shortly thereafter to accomplish timely fiscal year close out processes. For
these agencies, no accrual entries are required because the vendors have submitted the invoices.

:9 TAP International, Inc. 20| Page

5 5 Attachment 1
Page 21 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

the public accounting firm is late on the filings, the vendor can be liable for late penalties.
Presently, the District is at risk of financial penalties should it fail to file, or file late.

e. Policy Gaps Can Be Closed Regarding Ethics Training

Under California Government Code Section 53235, the District must provide ethics training to
employees subject to the Conflict of Interest Code. According to the Institute of Local Government,
ethics is what one ought to do — the kind of behaviors that would make the world a better place —
especially if everyone engaged in them. Ethics is particularly important in public service. The public’s
trust and confidence in its leaders and public agencies is vital to its success. # Ethics training provides a
mechanism to practice good ethics and to create better working environments for employees.
Creating an ethical culture is one of introspective thinking, calling for on-going reflection and
examination, to ensure that when individual employees engage in business activities, the individual
has determined that the activity is aligned with the core values of the District.

TAP International found:

¢ While the District conducts ethics training for all persons subject to Statement of Economic
Interests filing requirements, the training is not customized to the operations of the
District. As a result, it may be difficult for employees to recognize potential or actual
conflicts of interest upon their occurrence. Having a training program customized to the
District’s environment allows the District to be clearer on what ethics means as it applies
to the District operations, including how to resolve ethical dilemmas that could arise in an
employee’s day-to-day activities, especially among those positions that routinely engage
with external stakeholders. A customized training program also allows the District to set
its sights on strengthening a culture of ethics around behavior, which would be higher than
the minimum requirements of the law. For example, a customized training program would
incorporate past experiences at the District and explain how to address those where
making the wrong decisions could come at a personal cost, adversely affecting working
relationships with colleagues, or adversely impacting the District. The training program
could also explain how to work through a situation when there is no “wrong” decision, but
how one decision may be better aligned with the District’s core values than the other.

¢ In 2012, the District exempted 31 employees from ethics training, including Finance and
Government Relations employees who are in positions that require the highest level of
government ethics. District policies and procedures do not include criteria for allowing
exemptions to ethics training.

4 Understand the Basics of Public Service Ethics, Promoting Personal and Organizational Ethics, Institute of Local
Government, 2009.

:9 TAP International, Inc. 21| Page

56 Attachment 1

Page 22 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Principal Results — Benchmarking Analysis

4. The District is Positioned to Build on Current
Successes to Advance Management

Practices through Additional Transparency and
Accountability

Transparency builds accountability both internally and externally. In turn, increased accountability
improves organizational performance. The road to transparency is through public participation and
collaboration. Open access to information and public involvement in government decision-making
facilitates public trust and promotes efficiency and effectiveness in government.

Accountability guides effective public management. Accountability is the process of taking ownership
and responsibility for activities, measuring and reporting on results, and responding to problems. Thus,
the ability to execute and deliver results is directly linked to accountability practices, organizational
culture, and other systems in place. If these components are not working effectively, then performance
improvement will be adversely affected.

The Blue Ribbon Panel discussion, as well as, research on high performing public sector organizations,
consistently finds improved accountability creates improved performance. The relationship is

illustrated in Figure 4.0:

Figure 4.0: Transparency Relationship

Improved Improved Facilitates

o Increased
Accountability Performance Snlsle

The Blue Ribbon Panel that we convened for this review had three charges:
1. Identify leading public management practices in transparency and accountability potentially
applicable to the District’s operations, management, and strategy;
2. Share insights in a public discussion setting as a way to invite on-going discussion; and,
3. Offer suggestions that District staff, managers, executives, and Directors could discuss and
implement to accomplish the District’s goal of becoming a national leader among water
agencies.

ﬁ' TAP International, Inc. 22| Page

57 Attachment 1
Page 23 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

The Blue Ribbon Panel convened for a half-day public discussion, with attendance of members of the
Board, District executives, managers, staff, and the public. The Panel consisted of four experts, chosen
for their considerable and long-standing professional experience, practice, and research on
transparency and accountability at the national, state, special district, and local government levels. In
the weeks prior to the Panel’s public discussion, each Panel member was provided fact sheets
specifically focused on each of the five public management areas. The background information and the
Panel member’s professional knowledge of the issue areas facilitated the discussion of leading
practices. There was not an expectation among Panel members to comment on the operational
intricacies of District operations.

The Blue Ribbon Panel members’ discussion found consensus on a range of leading practices in each
of the five public management areas chosen as focus areas by the district.

A. Civic Engagement: The District Can Do More to Align with Leading Practices

Civic engagement is a process of inclusion and collaboration with key stakeholders, including the
general public. Civic engagement is designed to obtain information from the public on issues and
concerns, to consult with the public on matters concerning operations and service delivery, and to
solicit input for deliberating and informing decision-making. Sustained and effective engagement can
improve a public agency’s effectiveness, the quality of its decisions, as well as build public trust in all
areas of public management. The Blue Ribbon Panel highlighted the importance of civic engagement
for the District given the complexity of water policy issues, including the limited supply of water
resources coupled with increased demand. Panel members also discussed experiences where
collectively working with stakeholders and the public can build the trust needed for public support and
response in a time of crisis. Engagement activities that provide the highest level of impact involve
collaboration and empowerment and reach beyond the usual participants and special interests to
include all stakeholders. These impacts can be in the form of avoiding mistakes in decision-making and
facilitating greater public support for final decision-making.

Leading Civic Engagement Practices Suggested by the Blue Ribbon Panel

The Blue Ribbon Panel emphasized there is no one-size-that-fits-all for leading practices in civic
engagement. Rather, the most effective tools and actions for civic engagement differ according to the
level of uncertainty and potential risk in the organization’s decisions. To determine the best approach,
the organization must consider the issue at-hand, demographics of the community, the means in which
the civic engagement take places, and how the public agency officials will use the results in their
decision-making. This “sensitivity to context” provides a model for meaningful engagement across a
wide range of issues and across varied communities and the changing demographics of California.
Effective engagement does not tout engagement for engagement sake, but ties the engagement
directly to the mission and strategic goals of the District, including a detailed statement of the ways in
which transparency, participation and collaboration can help the District achieve its results. In fact,
effective engagement on one set of issues can build civic capacity that translates into other action
areas.

ﬁ TAP International, Inc. 23| Page

5 8 Attachment 1

Page 24 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Asking a series of established questions provides a powerful mechanism for identifying the type of tools
and practices to be used in each civic engagement. Discussing each question could also help build a
culture of effective dialogue. Panel members suggested developing the following checklist of key
guestions when planning civic engagement:

=  What is the goal to be accomplished?

=  What s the purpose?

=  What are the ground rules?

=  What is the risk?

=  Who is making the decision?

=  What resources are available?

=  What are the set of actions to implement?

=  How will results be communicated back to stakeholders?

The Blue Ribbon Panel also described the following leading practices for effective civic engagement:

1. Collectively, the public, Board of
Directors and the organization’s staff,
develop a consensus on organization- Potential accomplishments upon alighment
wide goals to advance an agency’s to leading practices
mission. Enhanced relationships that facilitate
2. ldentify and communicate to the organizational success.
participants — in advance - the Greater ability to address future complex
purpose of each civic engagement as challenges.
one the following: informational, Building of greater trust among staff, the
advisory, or consulting. public, and key stakeholders by
3. Administer civic engagement activities implementing meaningful dialogue.
strategically to link directly to an Effectively adjust to the changing
agency’s goals and objectives. cultural and demographics of California.
4. Invite the general public to be part of Providing the public a clearer
the decision making process at a understanding of the District’s mission,
deliberative level on policies that goals, and accomplishments and new
affect the residents, and provide initiatives.
notification of when and how
information will be shared with the
public.
5. Build civic capacity on one issue to build capacity on other issues, and use that participatory
network and process for future issues.
6. Facilitate involvement of future generations.
7. Anticipate crisis by identifying appropriate linkages to questions on current information, for
issues on the horizon, and policy developments external to the organization’s environment.
8. Provide financial sponsorships to organizations that clearly link to the organization’s
mission.
9. View civic engagement as a journey and an on-going process to build public trust.

10. Build trust with a forthrightness of information.

® TAP International, Inc.

59

24| Page

Attachment 1
Page 25 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

11. Conduct information engagement with clarity through web sites, media, and other tools.
12. Implement an expansive web site search capacity.

Benchmarking Analysis

As shown in Figure 5.0, the District aligns with five leading practices and has the assets to fully
implement another five practices. Assets are defined as tools, processes, staff, and structure. The
District could consider implementing two other leading practices in the long-term.

Figure 5.0: Civic Engagement: Alignment with Leading Practices

5 5
2
Alignment to Leading Practices Leading Practices that the District Has Leading Practices for Future
the Necessary Assets to Fully Consideration
Implement

Five Areas of Alignment

Involving future generations

¢ The District sponsors educational outreach programs, including poster and video contests, on the

value of water conservation and watershed management. To date, 20,000 children have received
education and information.

Engaging the public at a deliberative level

¢ The District allows public participation in all open meetings and encourages the public to respond
and comment on Board agendas and documents through the District’s web site.

Building civic capacity

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 25| Page

60 Attachment 1
Page 26 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

¢ The District’'s Communications and Customer Relations Unit is central to its outreach activities and
implements a substantial number of activities, such as:

media relations;

the District’s external web site and intranet;
social media;

e-news streaming;

marketing campaigns;

community engagement plans for each project;
surveys;

community meetings and open houses;

focus groups; and,

mailings, and neighborhood notices.

The information disseminated by the Communications and Customer Relations Unit relates to the goals
of the District, especially in the area of conservation. For example, to support one of the District’s goals
(to conserve water resources), the District recently engaged the community to report on water wasters
through a new smart phone application.

Web site search capacity

¢ The District’s web site provides users a robust search capacity, allowing users multiple options to
search for information using key words.

Issues on the horizon

¢ The Districtis looked to as a leader in the State on providing current information about the drought
issues affecting the State. The District is also tracking state water resources management policy for
the Bay Delta as a key water resource, and provides information on the aqua.gov web site on future
challenges regarding water supply, natural flood protection, and water resources stewardship.

These challenges include: whether projected water supply demand exceeds current supplies; the
increasing costs of maintaining and managing assets necessary to treat, distribute, and store water;
the vulnerability of the quality, quantity, and availability of local and imported water supplies to
factors external to the District; and, climate change affecting flooding.

Five Leading Practices that the District has the Assets to Fully Implement

Agreement on organizational-wide goals

¢ The District is in the process of developing an operational strategic plan. At the time of issuance
of this report, the content of the preliminary plan is a step in the right direction. The process to

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 26| Page

6 1 Attachment 1
Page 27 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

develop District-wide strategic goals for the plan generally involves the participation of the Board
of Directors and considers the input of the public and staff.

Purpose of engagement

¢ The District administers a substantial level of engagement activities. For example, Board members
attended 562 events in 2013 upon request and/or invitations by the public. Since 2011, the
number of meetings, outreach events, and presentations carried out by the Board increased by 36
percent, contributing to the transparency of the District. In other areas, the Communications and
Customer Relations Unit and Office of Government Relations continuously implement a myriad of
communication activities for advocacy, training, informational, or outreach purposes. However,
the Office of Government Relations and the Communication Unit generally implement activities
independently. For example, the Office of Government Relations recently sponsored and
promoted staff development regarding communication skills, an area of expertise by the
Communication Unit. Strategic coordination of this wide range of district activities with the public
creates the opportunity for developing a comprehensive strategy that leverages each of those
activities into a measurable set of significant outcomes.

Engagement as journey to facilitate trust

¢ The District implemented a substantial level of public engagement in the last election that led to a
high level of public support for water rate increases. While the results provide an indicator of
public trust, the leading practice focuses on sustained engagement and transparency in all areas
of District activities. A particular opportunity for the District is to enhance the effectiveness of
engagement surrounding capital project planning and construction projects. The results of the mid-
level manager focus groups show that the District could strategically and openly share information
with the Board of Directors on capital project issues, challenges, schedule changes, and updated
plans.

Forthrightness of information

¢ The District disseminates considerable information on its web sites and requests feedback from
the general public. The District also provides a substantial level of information on capital
improvement projects on its web site. Members of the Public Stakeholder Committee suggested
that the District could provide more detailed information on project successes and failures and
also prepare detailed responses to frequently asked questions (FAQs). Committee members
explained that the District’s responses to FAQs posted on the District’s valleywater.org web-site
do not generally answer the question. In another area, mid-level managers who participated in a
focus group generally agreed that trust is not built when staff do not fully report to the Board on
the circumstances of delays or challenges with District projects.

Conduct information engagement with clarity through web sites, media, and other tools

:9 TAP International, Inc. 27| Page

62 Attachment 1

Page 28 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

¢ The District administers multiple information engagement activities. A key information
engagement activity, responding to requests, is administered by the Public Records Unit and is
performed by that Unit in an exemplary manner. Other key information engagement activities are
administered through the District’'s web site, social media, media relations, and mobile
applications. While the District’'s web site (valleywater.org) provides a substantial amount of
information, transparency is not fully accomplished if the information can be found only by
searching the entire website. Organizing information from the perspective of the public, external
user versus for use by an internal staff person (especially for the most frequently sought
information) can, in a larger context, make sure the District is effectively utilizing its web site as an
information sharing tool. The District has plans to revamp its website.

The District can do more to use other technologies to re-define relationships with local
jurisdictions, citizens, and to change expectations about their services. For example, although the
District is a wholesaler of water to local jurisdictions, it could use remote and satellite sensing to
better track water usage among local jurisdictions so that District can use the results to develop
new ways to engage the general public on water conversation initiatives and programs.

Two Leading Practices for Future Consideration

Strategic and effective engagement

¢ The District does not consistently track information about the effectiveness of its engagement
activities. By implementing quantitative-based ways to evaluate the effectiveness of its current
civic engagements, the District could use the results of the studies and place its focus on those
cost-effective engagement strategies that best advance District goals and objectives. Having this
information also could help strategic decision-making on allocating resources among the most
effective of engagement activities. Formal measurement of the success of each civic engagement
activity will provide the District a means to learn from their experience and a way to better leverage
financial resources on engagement activities that lead to the best impact for the dollars invested.

There are many types of civic engagement outcomes that can be reviewed, such as:

v" Measuring the District’s success to administer sustained engagement activities for soliciting
public input and recommendation;

v" Monitoring changes in the level of direct public involvement in advancing the District’s mission
and goals;

v" Determining how the Board’s decisions were influenced by community input and feedback
and the impact on the decisions made;

v" Measuring efficiency in the engagement design and process regarding specific programs or
issues; and,

v" Formally assessing the level of satisfaction of internal and external stakeholders with civic
engagement activities.

It should be noted that, to date, few agencies routinely assess the effectiveness of their civic
engagement programs, so this could be an opportunity for the District to become a leader among
public agencies in this area.

:9 TAP International, Inc. 28| Page

63 Attachment 1

Page 29 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Financial sponsorships

¢ The Blue Ribbon Panel emphasized that any financial sponsorships provided by the District to
community groups or events should be directly related to the mission of the District: water
resources. The District has available funding for sponsorships of events and community
organizations and has provided sponsorships to organizations in accordance with established
District policy for promoting inclusion and diversity efforts, but there were no District reports
available showing whether such contributions have had an impact on them. Members of the Board
and District staff questioned whether sponsorships awarded to local community groups are
directly linked to the mission and goals of the District. The District could develop additional policy
and practices to explicitly link and evaluate sponsorships in advancing the mission and measurable
goals of the District.

B. Performance Management: The District Can Advance to the Next Level of Public
Management through Additional Clarity and Impact by Narrowing Key Indicators and
Metrics

The fundamental premise of performance measures is to provide information to determine how
organizations can perform better. It is not focused on how the organization is performing. If an
organization measures the right things, and measured these correctly, the results will tell management
where the organization is in comparison to where it wants to be. A performance-based management
system also responds to customer expectations and is developed in the context of strategic planning.
Strategic planning involves the development of the organization’s framework, which includes the
mission, vision, values, and the goals that will direct all organizational activities covered during the
timeframe of the plan. This component of strategic planning almost always involves the Board of
Directors, the CEO, key staff and other internal and external stakeholders. Another component of
strategic planning involves developing operational strategies that describe how strategic goals will be
accomplished. Each key unit of the District could also develop its own operational strategic plan that
links to the District’s overall strategic goals and objectives. Operational strategy plans are used in the
budgeting process to ensure appropriate staff and financial resources are in place to accomplish these
goals. Finally, strategic planning involves identifying performance measures to evaluate the
organization’s progress in goal accomplishment.

A performance management model has the following key components: clear and measurable goals
and objectives; performance measures linked to the goals and objectives; systems and processes for
data collection and analysis; delegated authority to affect change when change is needed; and, routine
reporting of performance to stakeholders. While there are no established benchmarks for the number
of performance measures to track, leading organizations establish a set of a “critical few” measures
that directly link to the organization’s strategic goals and objectives.

ﬁ TAP International, Inc. 29| Page

6 4 Attachment 1

Page 30 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

The aim of performance management models is to implement continuous process improvement
activities as a result of routine measurement of performance, acting on areas that need improved
performance, and reporting on the results of agency spending. Figure 6.0 below illustrates one type
of performance-based management model that is used in the public sector.

Figure 6.0: Performance Management Model
Strategic Planning

Performance - ,
Management (mission, strategic goals
g and objectives, and

Model outcomes development)

Monitor

Improve
(identify (projects,
opportunities for programs,
improvement) activities)

Leading Performance Management Practices Discussed by the Panel

The blue ribbon panel described five leading practices for performance management. These practices

include:

1. Establish a clear mission for the organization and develop equally as clear goals based on their
value to the community.

2.  Implement a culture of performance management by:

Developing metrics that define success and link the metrics to the goals;

Providing authority within the organization to affect change;

Implementing data systems to monitor performance;

Unpacking problems through metrics to determine what is needed to accomplish the goal; and,

Day-to-day managerial decisions that are driven by the organization’s missions and goals.

3.  Remain committed to performance management, but exercising flexibility as conditions and
circumstances evolve.

4. Allow for evolution of the performance management model over time.

?‘@ TAP International, Inc. 30| Page

6 5 Attachment 1
Page 31 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

5. Drive budget decisions based on achievement of
benchmarks and targets agreed upon by both

Potential accomplishments upon
the Board and management.

alignment to leading practices

The Blue Ribbon Panel emphasized that the actual Increased cost effectiveness in

goals of the organization are less important than how expenditures.

they affect managerial day-to-day decisions. Improved management performance
on current projects and policies.

Benchmarking Analysis Increased management capacity to
address future complex challenges.

As shown in Figure 7.0, the District aligns with two Greater visible accountability for goals

leading practices for performance management and through increased transparency to the

has the assets to implement another two leading Board, staff, and the public.

practices. Assets are defined as tools, processes, staff, Better clarity, focus, and co-ownership

and structure. The District could consider of District goals and activities through

implementing another leading practice in the future. engaging the public and staff on
discussions of effective measures.

Figure 7.0: Performance Management: Alignment with Leading Practices

Alignment to Leading Leading Practices that the Leading Practices for Future
Practices District Has the Necessary Consideration
Assets to Fully Implement

Two Areas of Alignment

Performance model evolving over time

ﬁ' TAP International, Inc. 31| Page

66 Attachment 1

Page 32 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

¢ The Malcolm Baldridge Model of Performance was the District’s first performance management
model implemented in the 1990s. The District’s model has since evolved, incorporating over 180
measures tracked and monitored by the Office of the CEO Support. The District presently has plans
to expand the performance management model to the staff level, linking agency performance to
employee performance expectations.

Commitment to performance management

¢ In spite of multiple changes at the CEO position and, although the performance management
model has changed over time, the District’'s Board remains committed to implementing
performance management.

Two Leading Practices that the District has the Assets to Fully Implement

Clear mission and goals

. The enabling legislation of the District calls for the control and conservation of flood and storm
waters and the protection of watercourses, watersheds, public highways, life and property from
damage or destruction from such waters; to provide for the acquisition, retention, and
reclaiming of drainage, storm, flood, and other waters; and, to save, conserve, and distribute
such waters for beneficial use. The District has used the enabling legislation to formulate a clear
mission statement -- provide Silicon Valley with safe, clean water for a healthy life, environment
and economy. The mission statement is shown on the web site, on budget documents, and is
described on the District’s latest strategic planning effort. Where the District deviates from
leading practices is tracking and reporting on over 700 milestones linked to over 180 measures,
which are tied back to the 31 goals of the District. Managers, directors, and staff reported that
the level of performance measurement tracked has led to the lack of clarity on goals and general
confusion about the priorities of the District.

Culture of performance management

¢ The District has all of the elements in place to establish a culture of performance management.
Concerns exist about the value of tracking many measures and the challenges of drawing
meaningful conclusions from them. Many District employees (at all levels) generally agreed that
more could be done to monitor metrics that define the success of the District, starting with
utilizing the existing performance management database that has a capability of performing
trend analysis, which would identify areas for change. We noted that not all District units
routinely unpack problems through the analysis of metrics nor consistently use performance
management to drive day-to-day managerial decisions that are linked to the agency’s missions
and goals. In those Units that do implement performance management, the activities are
exemplary. We previously described in this report the noteworthy performance management
environment administered by the Public Records Unit.

:9 TAP International, Inc. 32| Page

67 Attachment 1
Page 33 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Another Leading Practice for Future Consideration

Budget decisions and benchmarks

. The budget documents used by the District describe outputs of the District’'s many activities,
such as the number of tons removed from creeks and streams, and the number of soil tests
performed. Members of the Board raised the issue that the District could do more to link the
measures used by the District to direct outcomes on whether the activities have met strategic
goals. The results of the mid-level staff focus group explained that the District needs to improve
upon the information shared with the Board for decision-making when describing the District’s
performance on projects.

C. Budgeting: The District Prepares a Comprehensive Set of Budget Documents That
Provides an Opportunity for Increased Transparency by Facilitating Fiscal Fluency

According to the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA), the budgeting process is one area
of finance that in many jurisdictions needs additional guidance. There is a nationally accepted set of
recommended practices for budgeting which links the budget process with the political, managerial,
planning, communication, and financial activities of the agency. These recommended practices also
link budgeting practices with the development of organizational goals, establishment of policies and
plans to achieve these goals, and allocation of resources through the budget process that are
consistent with goals, policies, and plans.

The use of performance information in budget formulation provides critical data to support resource
allocation decisions. The overall benefit of utilizing performance data is to improve mission
accomplishment for the program, agency, or administration by ensuring that resources are allocated
in the most efficient and effective manner. The most fundamental goal in budget formulation and
decision making is determining the best allocation of scarce government resources in order to
maximize outcomes. One process is to measure the desired outcome followed by measuring the
resources, activities, and tools necessary to produce the outcome. Unfortunately, implementing the
guidance does not necessarily result in budgeting effectiveness. An effective budgeting process goes
beyond traditional budget formulation by describing the impact that resources, activities, and tools
have on outcomes. An effective budget process also evaluates the longer-term impact of budget
decisions and their consequences over a multi-year horizon, including assessing the financial
sustainability of programs and services.

The leading practices described below are designed to enhance the quality of decision making by
encouraging practices that illuminate the key priorities and issues facing a community.

:9 TAP International, Inc. 33| Page

6 8 Attachment 1

Page 34 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Leading Budget Practices Discussed by the Blue Ribbon Panel

The Blue Ribbon Panel’s discussion echoed GFOA practices and emphasized the following
advancements in budgeting:

1.

All agency spending, including staffing, projects, or sponsorships, should reflect the goals
and aspiration of the agency.

Fiscal fluency is established as a process that ensures understanding among all key
stakeholders and the public of the budgeting processes and budgetary decisions.

Formal budgeting processes that have clarity and focus lead to timely budgeting processes.
External engagement establishes budget priorities and promotes transparency in the
budgeting process.

The budget should be built around water policy issues agreed upon by community
stakeholders, and should consider interactive on-line conversations with the community.
Budget priorities are communicated back to stakeholders to facilitate accountability.
Short and clear budget summaries are prepared.

Benchmarking Analysis

As shown in Figure 8.0, the District aligns with three leading practices for budgeting and has the assets
to implement another two leading practices. Assets are defined as tools, processes, staff, and

structure.

The District could consider implementing two other leading practices in the future.

Figure 8.0: Budgeting - Alignment with Leading Practices

3
2 2
Alignment to Leading Practices Leading Practices that the District Has Leading Practices for Future
the Necessary Assets to Fully Consideration
Implement
Three Areas of Alignment
Developing short and clear budget summaries
"ﬁ' TAP International, Inc. 34| Page

69 Attachment 1

Page 35 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

¢ The District generally provides short and clear budget summaries with sufficient information
about spending on District goals and objectives and planned activities for their accomplishment.

External engagement to establish budget priorities

¢ The District outreaches to all local jurisdictions annually to identify and discuss needed capital
improvement projects. Also, the District’'s Board convenes meetings in other jurisdictions in
efforts to accomplish greater public participation in the budgeting process.

Communicating budget priorities back to stakeholders to facilitate accountability

¢ The District disseminates budget briefs to the community that effectively presents budgetary
priorities, including providing data on the level of spending across 31 goals.

Two Leading Practices that the District has the Assets to Fully Implement

Spending that reflects the agency’s organizational-wide goals and aspirations

¢ The District prepares budgets that allocate spending for conservation, water storage, and flood
control. If the District took steps to ensure that the spending explicitly supported its mission and
strategic goals, especially in the area of community sponsorships, performance monitoring, and
external engagement activities, then fiscal alignment to District goals is accomplished.

Fiscal fluency

¢ The District’s Board implements considerable efforts to increase public participation in the budget
process. Activities implemented include conducting outreach to the community, convening Board
meetings in other localities, and inviting the public to budget workshops. The District also
conducted comprehensive presentations on the budget. However, the District has not yet
prepared or presented information on how to read or understand the budget. With greater
knowledge about how to read budgets, greater interest of the public could be accomplished.

Other Leading Practices for Future Consideration

Timely budgeting process

¢ The District has a nine-month preparation process to prepare the annual operating budget and
capital budget even though agency utilizes incremental budgeting. Incremental budgeting
involving adding across-the-board increases to prior year budget line items and should provide an
opportunity to reduce the time required to prepare the final budget. According to the Finance

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 35|Page

70 Attachment 1
Page 36 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

staff, a longer timeframe is needed because so many stakeholders are involved in reviewing the
budget. Others explained that the Office must wait to receive information from other units
regarding the capital budget. Other public agencies with large capital improvement projects do
not generally require a nine-month budgeting processes. Generally, a four to six month process
is utilized.

Building budgets around water policy issues agreed upon by the public

¢  Externally, there is the opportunity to connect the budget to a shared sense of the District’s
mission and Board End Policies through expanding public participation on water policy
discussions. This discussion can explore options and tools for involving the public in the budgeting
process, and reporting back to the community with discussions of priorities. Current efforts focus
primarily on including interested stakeholders, other special districts, city and counties. Public
meetings are generally held to inform and to respond to issues and concerns regarding planning
capital improvement projects.

D. Oversight: The Board of Director’s and CEO’s Commitment to Transparency and
Accountability Presents an Opportunity to do More to Establish an Organizational
Culture of Continuous Process Improvement and Innovation

Oversight processes operationalize accountability and transparency in public agencies. Monitoring of
government activities for efficiency and effectiveness, compliance to laws and regulations, and
checking for conflicts of interests achieve a more effective, accountable, open and ethical government.
Mechanisms for conducting oversight can occur at the Board level, through external watchdog
agencies, and internally, through a culture of performance and accountability and with an internal
audit function.

Continuous improvement is an ongoing effort to improve products, services or processes.
Improvement can occur all at once, or in a series of incremental improvements. The process can also
include the questioning of whether to continue, streamline, or eliminate certain processes as they
relate to an organization’s strategic or operational goals. A culture of continuous process improvement
allows for learning from failures with a goal of identifying needed improvements early on.

What are the key elements of Continuous Quality Improvement?

e Accountability

o Driven by good management...not crisis

o Driven by input from all levels of staff and stakeholders
o  Teamwork

° Continuous review of progress

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 36|Page

7 1 Attachment 1
Page 37 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

What are the internal and external benefits of Continuous Quality Improvement?

o Improved accountability

o Improved staff morale

o Refined service delivery process

o Flexibility to meet service need changes

° Enhances information management, client tracking & documentation
o Means to determine & track program integrity and effectiveness

o Lends itself to design of new programs & program components

¢  Allows creative/innovative solutions

Who is involved in Continuous Quality Improvement?

e  Citizens served

o Employees, volunteers & consultants
o Members of boards

e  Consumer advocates

e  Alllevels of agency staff

What are the steps in the Continuous Quality Improvement process?

1. Identify a need/issue/problem and develop a problem statement.
Define the current situation - break down problem into component parts, identify major
problem areas, develop a target improvement goal.

3. Analyze the problem - identify the root causes of the problem and use charts and diagrams as
needed.

4. Develop an action plan - outline ways to correct the root causes of the problem, specific actions
to be taken, identify who, what, when and where.

5. Look at the results - confirm that the problem and its root causes have decreased, identify if
the target has been met and display results in graphic format before and after the change.

6. Start over - go back to the first step and use the same process for the next problem.

Leading Oversight Practices Discussed by the Blue Ribbon Panel
The Blue Ribbon Panel outlined the following leading practices to accomplish effective oversight.
1. Structure continuous process improvement around ethics and governance.
2. Adopt a culture of continuous process improvement activities and engagement. The
activities and subsequent engagement among staff include pragmatic business practices

to ensure follow-up on corrective actions.
3. Engage across functions to build commonality and capacity for shared action.

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 37| Page

72 Attachment 1
Page 38 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Potential accomplishments upon alignment to

Benchmarking Analysis e e

As shown in Figure 9.0, the District v" Pragmatic business practices that will ensure
aligns with two leading practices for appropriate follow-up on needed corrective

actions.

Organizational outcomes and effective use of
resources becomes everyone’s responsibility,
with the capacity for organizational learning
to facilitate success quickly.

oversight activities and has the assets
to implement another leading practice.
Assets are defined as tools, processes,
staff, and structure.

Figure 9.0: Oversight - Alignment with Leading Practices

Alignment to Leading Practices Leading Practice that the District Has the
Necessary Assets to Fully Implement

Two Areas of Alignment

Structuring Oversight within an Office of Ethics and Corporate Governance

¢ To foster a culture of accountability, the CEO established the Office of Ethics and Corporate
Governance (OECG), which was well received by many District staff. The OECG is charged with
administering and managing the Office of CEO support, internal audits, external communications,
governmental relations, diversity, inclusion, ethics, and equal opportunity. Many members
participating in the mid-management level focus group believe that the OECG should have greater
autonomy to address organizational culture and conflicts of interest issues at the District,
including having the authority to affect change.

Engage across functions to build commonality and capacity for shared action

¢ The OECG has initiated efforts to implement a series of engagement activities with staff, such as
improving cultural diversity and inclusion, sponsoring the Blue Ribbon Panel Symposium that led
to subsequent District dialogue, and coordinating the focus groups conducted as part of this
review to build commonality and capacity for shared action.

ﬁ' TAP International, Inc. 38| Page

73 Attachment 1
Page 39 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

One Leading Practice that the District has the Assets to Fully Implement

Culture for continuous process improvement

¢ Presently, the District has an audit function staffed with one FTE. The audit function performs
statutory and discretionary audits. The District also implements 1ISO 9001:2008, a process of
continuous process improvement. The process is implemented within the Watershed and Water
Utilities Division, but the administrative support divisions have questioned its applicability to
support services. The District’s two mechanisms for continuous process improvement have not
yet led to a culture of continuous process improvement.

Mid-level managers and directors generally agree that the District’s culture needs change to align
the District’s activities with the leading practice. District staff explained that the District could
benefit from comprehensive engagement of inclusion across different areas of operation. While
the District has communication processes in place, such as weekly leadership meetings, mid-level
managers and staff reported that District culture has too many independently operating silos and
focused too much on a culture of “success at all costs.” These aspects of its culture are in direct
contrast to a culture of continuous process improvement. A culture of continuous process
improvement allows for learning from failures with a goal of identifying needed improvements
early on.

An example of how the District has not yet established a culture of continuous process
improvement is evidenced by the absence of a formal General fund operating reserve account for
the District. The audited financial statement for FY 2012-13 and the District’s budget do not
identify a general fund operating reserve account. In the absence of such fund, the Board of
Directors or the public cannot identify the amount of revenue set aside for emergencies,
unanticipated expenditures, and to support operations when revenue receipts are lower than
anticipated. While the Chief Administrative Officer has attempted to change this practice by
establishing a Reserve Fund, the culture of the District of relying on past practices has hindered
implementation of such changes.

E. Board Governance: A Sustained Focus on Governance Processes to Facilitate
Transparency and Accountability is Present

A key attribute of effective governance is trust. A key factor that drives trust is effective communication
and established routines for interaction between elected officials, the public and management. Good
communication processes occur from the development of a governance structure that enhances both
the Board’s and District staff’s ability to meet the strategic, operational, and financial challenges of the
District, as well as increasing public confidence. A driving factor of effective Board governance is
obtaining quality information that is relevant and timely information and takes into account various
alternative approaches to address issues.

:9 TAP International, Inc. 39| Page

7 4 Attachment 1

Page 40 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Leading Board Governance Practices Discussed by the Blue Ribbon Panel

The Blue Ribbon Panel outlined the following leading practices in accomplishing effective Board
governance.

1. Build communication processes between District staff and governing Board members that allow
each to obtain clarity and discuss questions and, avoiding over-formulation of communication
processes and unilateral direction between the Board and District staff.

2. An agency’s Chief Executive Officer should be
informed of Board service requests to monitor Potential accomplishments upon alignment to
current issues and/or public concerns. This leading practices
should involve the inclusion of the Chief
Executive Officer on all communication with the
Board to ensure District staff follow-up in a
timely and accurate fashion.

Positive alignment of all levels of staff with
overall policy and goals.
Time and attention to continue to build

Board relationships.

3. Establish common ground for effective More effectively use the Board and staff
collective action that creates and adds value. time.
This common ground is found in clear Advance the goals of the district more cost

statements of mission, goals, and performance effectively.
measures.

4. Ensure the fundamentals of Board governance
by:

a. Centralizing authority over the Board agenda;

b. Implementing annual Board calendar;

c. Agreeing on criteria for the consent calendar; and,

d. Facilitating transparency through the use of webcasts.
Implement discipline to do the things that have to be done rather than what would be nice to do.
Provide timely, clear, and effectively presented information and reports to the Board.
Board members expand relationships with Boards from other jurisdictions.
All governance discussions are framed around the following questions: What are the ecological
systems that you are managing in? (e.g. global climate change, global economic competition) How
are demographics changing? How can added value be created?
9. The Board should directly outreach to the community on the budget.

© N

Benchmarking Analysis
As shown in Figure 10.0, the District aligns with four leading practices for Board governance and the

assets to fully implement other two leading practices. Assets are defined as tools, processes, staff, and
structure. The District could consider implementing three other leading practices in the future.

ﬁ TAP International, Inc. 40| Page

7 5 Attachment 1
Page 41 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Figure 10.0: Board Governance - Alignment to Leading Practices

4
3
2
Alignment to Leading Practices Leading Practices that the Leading Practices for Future
District Has the Necessary Consideration

Assets to Fully Implement

Four Areas of Alignment

Outreach to the community on the budget

¢ The Board has outreached to the community by holding Board meetings in other municipalities.
Outreach to non-traditional venues, such as libraries, can be expanded.

Outreach to governing Boards in other jurisdictions

¢ The Board has outreached to Boards in other jurisdictions regarding water resources policies.

The CEO should be informed of Board service requests to monitor current issues and/or public
concerns

¢ The Clerk of the Board routinely tracks Board service requests, which are available to the CEO for
review.

Governance discussions around global environmental issues

¢ The District conducts activities to identify and inventory greenhouse gas emissions and creates
various means to reduce the District’s carbon footprint. Efforts are also underway to better
understand potential global climate change impacts and develop guidelines to respond to future
challenges such as sea level rise.

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 41| Page

76 Attachment 1
Page 42 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Two Leading Practices that the District has the Assets to Fully Implement

Communication processes between District staff and Board members

¢ Currently, the CEO meets with individual Board members at least monthly to discuss the matters
of the District. The CEO communicates Board priorities to executive leadership management and
staff through regular meetings, bulletins and intranet-based communications. District staff at the
mid-managers and staff levels reported that allowing open and direct communication with the
Board provides an opportunity to clarify issues and ask questions about Board priorities. Presently,
deputy directors and directors generally respond directly to Board of Director inquiries and
promptly notify the District’s CEO. Nevertheless, without open communication among other staff
levels, the District is not in the best position to provide early identification of issues and concerns.

Effective reporting to the Board of Directors

¢ The District prepares and presents quarterly performance reports of a comprehensive list of
District activities, including providing data on hundreds of performance measures. District staff
generally agree that more can be done to provide better reports by selecting and reporting on core
goals and measures.

Three Other Leading Practices for Future Consideration

Common ground for effective collective action

¢ The District is in the process of updating its strategic plan, which, if designed well, will provide
clarity on the District’s mission, goals and objectives, and performance measures. However, TAP
International could not determine — based on available data — whether Board members and the
public will be involved. Excluding stakeholder involvement could hinder the District’s ability to
establish common ground for collective action.

Streamlining authority over the Board agenda

¢ The Clerk of the Board administers a process to prepare the Board agenda and packet that requires
up to nine signatures by executive management, which consequently necessitates a large lead
time, continuous monitoring, and repeated follow-up to ensure completion of the packet.

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 42 |Page

77 Attachment 1
Page 43 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Improving fundamentals of Board governance in this area by having only the CEO review and
approve the agenda enhances accountability.

Organizational discipline

¢ District staff (among all levels of the organization, including the mid-level manager focus group)
explained that the District performs a wide variety of services and activities internally and
externally, such as providing financial sponsorships to community groups that do not clearly link
to the mission of the District. For example, District staff cited implementing activities beyond the
scope of projects to ensure the protection of wildlife, and modifying capital projects to ensure the
homeowner views of vistas are maintained. The District will also administer new initiatives at the
request of the CEO. While the District strives to provide excellent public service, clearly aligning —
so that the purpose is transparent to District staff and the public — all activities to its core mission
leveraging resources to the maximum extent possible is critical.

5. The District Is On Par With
Implementing Leading Practices in
Comparison to Other Water Agencies

A key goal of the District is to become a national leader among water agencies. To assess the progress
of the District in accomplishing this goal, we analyzed the District’s progress at becoming a state-wide
leader by comparing alignment of leading practices between the District’s activities and three other
California water agencies: Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD), Sonoma County
Water Agency, and the San Diego County Water Authority. The comparative analysis focused on seven
selected leading practices described in Figure 11.0 below.

& TAP International, Inc. 43 | Page

7 8 Attachment 1
Page 44 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Figure 11.0: Comparative Peer Analysis of Other Selected Leading Practices

LEGEND Alignment .

Opportunity

Leading Practices Sonoma Metropolitan | San Diego District
County Water County
Water District of Water
Agency Southern Authority
California

Alignment with Leading Practices

A - Civic Engagement

Conduct information engagement with clarity
through web sites, media, and other mechanisms.

Implement an expansive search capacity on the ‘
web site.

The public is part of the decision-making process
at a deliberative level.

B - Performance Management (insufficient data -- --
available to draw comparisons)

C - Budgeting

Spending, whether through budgeting or with
financial sponsorships, should explicitly reflect and
advance the goals and aspirations of the agency.

Formal budgeting processes should be in place, -- --
with clarity and focus resulting in a timely
budgeting process.

D - Oversight

Structure the organization around ethics and ‘ ‘

governance.

Adopt a culture of continuous process
improvement.

The District has comparable leading practices to two other water agencies
Overall, the District and two agencies’ activities align with three of the seven leading practices that we
examined.

e Both the District and Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) had
management structures for oversight of their ethics operations, but MWD’s policy delegates
greater responsibility to their Ethics Officer for insuring Board compliance with reimbursable

‘ﬁ TAP International, Inc. 44 |Page

79 Attachment 1
Page 45 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

expenses, business travel, filings, vehicle use, sexual harassment policies, and requirements
for running for and holding office.

e Both the District and the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) allow the public to be
involved in deliberative decision making. SDCWA allows electronic feedback on public
documents, including Board documents available on its web site.

For one other leading practice examined -- conducting an information engagement with clarity -- the
District’s activities were not at the level of the other water agencies. The District’s web site contains
information on many areas, but certain information cannot be easily found, such as financial
information, and other information is not structured or organized in a clear manager. In contrast, San
Diego County Water Authority’s web site aligns with leading practices by implementing information
engagement principles effectively. The information on the web site is well-organized, clear, and easily
found without the use of the “search” feature.

For the remaining three leading practices — having the agency’s budget reflect the goals and aspiration
of the agency, having a timely budgeting process, and adopting a culture of continuous process
improvement -- the activities of the four agencies reviewed did not align with the leading practice. The
District’s activities in these areas were previously described in this report.

6. Public Stakeholder Committee
Provides Input on Leading Practices

The Public Stakeholder Committee convened for participation in this review described 10 key areas
that it considers important from a public perspective. All of the areas align with the practices suggested
by the Blue Ribbon Panel.

Civic Engagement Expectations

1. Conduct authentic discussions
¢ Public Stakeholder Committee members suggested that the District could better answer
guestions posed by the general public on the valleywater.org web site. For example, the
Frequency Asked Questions (FAQs) section of the District’s web site does not sufficiently
address the original inquiries, and some links on the District's web site were not
functioning at the time the web site was utilized. In addition, sometimes documents
referred to within the text were not present or readily available.

2. Enhance efforts to view the public as a partner
¢ Public Stakeholder Committee members suggested that the District could be strategic in
its methods of sharing information, suggesting use of the District’s web site as a “home-
base” for information, and enhance its use of other channels to “engage” the public.

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 45| Page

80 Attachment 1

Page 46 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Performance Management

3. Increase the use of trend analysis
¢ Public Stakeholder Committee members would like to see the District use more graphical
display of information to explain trends in performance and to show successes of the
District.

4, Add use of effectiveness studies
¢ Public Stakeholder Committee members would like the District to incorporate the results
of cost effectiveness evaluations in its Board and District performance reports.

Budgeting

5. Use best practices in budgeting
¢ Public Stakeholder Committee members suggested that the District should simplify its
budget materials to facilitate fiscal fluency and to adopt suggested budgeting principles
and practices described in Government Financial Officers Association’s Recommended
Budget Practices: A Framework for Improved State and Local Government Budgeting.

6. Address future issues
¢ Public Stakeholder Committee members would like the District to further consider the
public’s voice on issues affecting future water management and policy.

7. Report success
¢ Public Stakeholder Committee members would like to see examples of effective spending
among the programs and services to better facilitate public trust.

Oversight

8. Honesty and transparency
¢ Pubic Stakeholder Committee members conveyed the importance of openly sharing
information and encouraged the District to be proactive in disclosing project activities.
Through the continuous process improvement processes, the Public Stakeholder
Committee would like to see the District change its culture from avoiding failure to
identifying and implementing lessons learned.

Board Governance

9. Greater leadership on influencing water management and policy
¢ Public Stakeholder Committee members requested that the District increase its efforts to
lead water resources and management policy issues at the State level.

10. Transparency on Board activities

‘9 TAP International, Inc. 46 |Page

8 1 Attachment 1
Page 47 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

¢ Public Stakeholder Committee members suggested that the general public would be
interested in the types of efforts and activities implemented by the Board of Directors.

ﬁ' TAP International, Inc. 47 | Page

82 Attachment 1

Page 48 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Appendix I: Professional Profiles - Blue Ribbon Panel of Experts

Gloria Rubio Cortez, MS

National Civic League (NCL) President Gloria Rubio-Cortés is also the Executive Editor of NCL's award-
winning journal National Civic Review. She has held leadership positions in business, philanthropy, and
non-profit organizations in California (Southern and Northern) and Colorado over the past 35 years,
specializing in civic engagement, social change, and civil rights. At philanthropic foundations, she was
a senior manager at Levi Strauss Foundation and ZeroDivide. She plays many roles at NCL including
strategic planner, facilitator, researcher, and writer. She has facilitated and co-facilitated a wide variety
of meetings in her professional life. She is co-author of the Civic Index, 2nd Edition and many articles
on civic engagement. She serves on the Denver Public Library Commission (Secretary), Urban Libraries
Council Board, Latino Community Foundation of Colorado Advisory Board, Mile High United Way Board
of Trustees, and others. A member of the National Academy for Public Administration, she is a co-
principal investigator on NCL’s Fiscal Sustainability Case Investigations Project with colleagues at the
University of Southern California and the University of San Francisco. Awards include the Disability
Funders Network Bill Diaz Award for grant making. She earned an M.S. in journalism from Columbia
University and a B.S. from the University of Colorado at Boulder.

John Kirlin, PhD

A California court appointed expert on water policy, John Kirlin is an elected fellow of the National
Academy of Public Administrator. He has four decades of professional work experience in analyzing
and engaging complex public policy problems, especially at the California and national level with
extensive work on natural resources policies, public finances, and regional governance. John authored
or co-authored roughly 100 articles, chapters and monographs and 13 books. He specializes in
launching and managing public processes to address stalemates in public policy making and/or
implementation. Formerly an Executive Director at Delta Vision Foundation, John has consulted the
State of California on matters ranging from species protection, to oversight of local government debt,
and the interface of energy and environmental policies. He has worked with the League of California
Cities and the California State Association of Counties on state-local fiscal policy and strategic thinking
regarding the future of those local governments. Through the National Academy of Public
Administration, John has served as an advisor on environmental policy to the United States Congress
and to the United States Environmental Protection Agency. John received his Doctorate in Political
Science at the University of California, Los Angeles and his Bachelor Degree in Political Science and
Government at the University of Notre Dame.

James P. Mayer, MPA

James Mayer is President and CEO of California Forward, an endowed organization responsible for
moving California forward in the performance of government. Through his efforts at California
Forward, Jim has spearheaded efforts to develop and implement budget reforms, including
performance-based budgeting, as well as programs in enhance transparency and accountability across
local and state public agencies. Notable efforts include developing a framework for civic engagement,

:9 TAP International, Inc. 48 |Page

83 Attachment 1

Page 49 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

a handbook of leading practices on strategic planning, a model for government that provides a stable
and results-oriented budget process, encourages cooperation among local governments, and
performance management.

Previously, Jim was the founding executive director of the New California Network (NCN), a
nonpartisan project to improve the state's fiscal decision-making. Prior to joining NCN, Jim was the
executive director of the Little Hoover Commission, an independent and bipartisan state panel that
reviews state programs and policies for efficiency and effectiveness. Jim joined the Commission's staff
in 1994 as a project manager and served as deputy executive director prior to his appointment as
executive director of the Commission in January 1999.

Jim has an associate of arts degree from Diablo Valley College, a bachelor’s degree in journalism from
California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo and a master's degree from the graduate
program in public policy administration at California State University, Sacramento. He was a mid-
career fellow at the schools of Communications and Natural Resources at the University of Michigan.

Jim serves on the board of the Yolo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District and is an
associate director of the Yolo County Resource Conservation District.

JoAnne Speers, JD, MPP

At the time of the Blue Ribbon Panel Symposium, JoAnne Speers was the Executive Director and Ethics
Program Director for California’s Institute of Local Government (now retired). At the Institute of Local
Government, JoAnne provided strategic direction for the California State Association of Counties’ and
the League of California Cities' 501(c) (3) research arm. She conducted research on leading practices in
public engagement, public service ethics, sustainability, intergovernmental collaboration, and was
responsible for numerous publications on these topics. JoAnne is a frequent speaker throughout
California on public management issues and in 2009, received the American Association of Public
Administration’s Public Integrity Award for the Institute’s Ethics Program.

JoAnne has worked with local officials for over 20 years through both her work with the Institute and
by having served as chief legal advisor to the League of California Cities. Previously, JoAnne served as
General Counsel and Assistant Director at the League of California Cities. The California State Bar’s
Public Law Section named her “Public Lawyer of the Year”. JoAnne received her JD, MPP, BA, Law,
Public Policy, and Political Science from the University of California, Berkeley.

Richard Callahan, DPA (Panel Facilitator)

Richard Callahan is an Associate Professor at the University of San Francisco’s (USF) School of
Management, teaching graduate courses in strategy, public administration, and leadership. Formerly,
a city administrator and LA County Deputy Supervisor, Richard brings 25 years of government
experience teaching and guiding agency officials on a myriad of issues from how to address difficult
organizational management issues to developing and maintaining a culture of performance
management. At USF, he is the Faculty Chair of the School of Management’s Strategic Planning
Committee and serves as the Faculty representative to the USF Board of Trustees. Richard, noted for
his thought leadership on governance and performance management, has authored and co-authored
over 20 publications written for The National Civic Review, Public Administration Review, Public

ﬁ TAP International, Inc. 49| Page

8 4 Attachment 1

Page 50 of 51



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT TRANSPARENCY COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND

BENCHMARKING REVIEW

Management Review, Public Manager, Journal of Public Administration Review and Theory, and
American Review of Public Administration. He has collaborated on projects for the U.S. Office of the
Vice-President, the U.S. Air Force, and multiple state and local agencies across health care,
transportation, environmental protection, and general government sectors. He has designed and
taught in international, national, and regional leadership programs, most notably the National
Conference of State Legislatures for experienced legislative staff across the United States, the
California Leadership Institute for State Executives, and the Global Leadership Institute in Turkey, as
well as leadership programs in Mexico. Richard earned his BA degree in from Georgetown University,
1982. He earned his MPA and Doctor of Public Administration (DPA) degree from the University of
Southern California. Richard is a principal of TAP International, Inc.

ﬁ TAP International, Inc. 50| Page

8 5 Attachment 1
Page 51 of 51



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

86



BOARD ENDS POLICIES - FY23 OUTCOME MEASURES

OUTCOME MEASURE

FY 20-21 Outcome

FY 21-22 Outcome

Target Outcome

E-2: Valley Water provides reli
communities served.

able, safe, and affordable

water supply for current

and future generations in all

Did Valley Water meet its annual water demand?

100% of annual water demand was met.

100% of annual water demand was met.
Annual demand was down 11% compared to
2019 due to drought (on June 9, 2021 the
Board called for a 15% reduction in water
use compared to 2019)

100% of annual water demand is met without calling for more
than 20% water use reduction.

Total acre-feet of groundwater storage

Estimated total groundwater storage was
332,000 acre-feet.

Estimated total groundwater storage was
312,000 acre-feet.

Total groundwater storage is greater than 300,000 acre-
feet .

Percentage of subsidence index wells with
groundwater levels above subsidence threshholds

100% of subsidence index wells had
groundwater levels above subsidence
thresholds.

100% of subsidence index wells had
groundwater levels above subsidence
thresholds.

100% of subsidence index wells with groundwater levels
above subsidence thresholds.

Percentage of water supply wells that meet or exceeds
quality standards

96% of water supply wells tested met all
primary drinking water standards (based on
calendar year 2020).

91% of water supply wells tested met all
primary drinking water standards (based on
calendar year 2021).

95% of water supply wells meet or exceeds quality
standards.

Percentage of treated water that meets or exceeds
primary drinking water standards.

100% of treated water delivered met or
exceeded all primary drinking water
standards.

100% of treated water delivered met or
exceeded all primary drinking water
standards.

100% of treated water meets or exceeds primary drinking
water standards.

Percentage of total annual maintenance work plans
completed for water transmission and distribution
facilities on schedule

Completed 21% of annual maintenance work
plans for water treatment facilities and 82%
of annual maintenance work plans for
transmission and distribution facilities.
Remaining work scheduled to be completed
in next fiscal year.

Note for water treatment facilities: FY21
included carried over purchases and
installations from FY20. Maintenance work
was still operating within

COVID work schedules and distancing
requirements.

Completed 76% of annual maintenance work
plans for water treatment facilities and 88%
of annual maintenance work plans for
transmission and distribution facilities.
Remaining work scheduled to be completed
in next fiscal year.

Complete at least 70% of total annual maintenance work
plans completed for transmission and distribution facilities
on schedule

Acre-feet of water supply portfolio from recycled and
purified water

17,436 acre-feet of recycled water in FY21.

16,855 acre-feet of recycled water in FY22.

24,000 acre-feet by 2028.

E-3 Natural flood protection is provided to reduce risk and improve health and safety for residents, businesses,

and visitors, now and into the

future.

Prioritize rehabilitation of existing creek facilities to
restore design levels of service, beyond routine
maintenance, by ensuring annual funds budgeted for
Watersheds Asset Rehabilitation Program (WARP)
and Safe, Clean Water (SCW) F8 are included in the
Watersheds Operation & Maintenance (O&M) budget.

Target outcome not achieved, annual budget
for WARP and SCW F8 projects amounted

Annual budget for WARP and SCW F8
projects amounted to 24.5% of annual

to 8.5% of annual W O&M budget

O&M budget.

Budget for WARP and SCW F8 projects is equivalent to
at least 15% of Watersheds O&M Division annual budget.

Percent of flood protection facilities inspected annually.

96% of levees were inspected and
maintained in FY21. It is noted that staff's
ability to conduct creek and levee inspections
was compromised in certain high-risk areas
due to safety concerns, insufficient law
enforcement support, and COVID-19-related
issues. To help ensure this measure is
achieved, the unit has undertaken an
improvement process to streamline and
prioritize inspections.

NOTE that there was no prior OM that
measured inspections for facilities other than
levees.

100% of levees were inspected and
maintained in FY22. It is noted that staff's
ability to conduct creek and levee
inspections continues to be compromised
in certain high-risk areas due to safety
concerns and at times, insufficient law
enforcement support.

100% of levees and at least 50% of other flood protection
facilities inspected annually.

Point Sum of the National Flood Insurance Program’s
(NFIP) Community Rating System (CRS) of all the
participating CRS Communities in Santa Clara County.

NFIP CRS total point sum (countywide) is
being maintained in FY21 Q4. As of
06/30/21, the point sum remains as follows:
16,195 w/o Valley Water's points; 18,041
w/Valley Water points.

NFIP CRS total point sum (countywide) is
being maintained in FY22 Q4. As of
06/30/22, the point sum remains as follows:
16,930 w/o Valley Water's points; 18,776
w/Valley Water points.

The point sum of all participating CRS Communties in
Santa Clara County is 13,000 or higher.

Percent of flood protection projects that incorporate
natural flood protection features

77% of Capitol flood protection projects in
the CIP incorporate NFP features (based on
FY22-26 CIP Report)

83% of Capitol flood protection projects in
the CIP incorporate NFP features (based on
FY23-27 CIP Report)

90% of flood protection projects incorporate natural flood
protection (NFP) features that enhance the physical,
hydrologic, and ecologic functions and process of streams
within the community setting.

E-4 Water resources stewards

hip protects and enhances ecosystem health.

Ecological data are made available to the public
through the Valley Water webpage annually and the
EcoAtlas tool.

100% of VW’s annual reports with ecological
data are made available to the public through
the Valley Water webpage and the EcoAtlas
tool

100% of VW'’s annual reports with ecological
data are made available to the public through
the Valley Water webpage and the EcoAtlas
tool

100% of Valley Water annual ecological monitoring
reports are made available to the public.

Percent of stewardship projects that include objectives
that enhance ecological functions, improve water
quality, or provide for trails & open space.

100% based on FY22-26 CIP Report

100% based on FY23-27 CIP Report

All stewardship projects include objectives that enhance
ecological functions, improve water quality, or provide for
trails & open space.

Percent of new Joint Use Agreements (JUAs) that
comply with the Trails Policy Criteria and Guidance.

0 percent (Trail Policy and Guidance went
into effect in FY21-22).

0 percent (several new JUAs are pending).

100% of new Joint Use Agreements comply with the
Trails Policy Criteria and Guidance.

E-5 Valley Water is carbon neutral and provides equitable, climate-resilient water supply, flood protection, and
water resource stewardship to all communities in Santa Clara County. This will be accomplished through the

implementation of the Climate

Change Action Plan.

87

Attachment 2
Page 1 of 2



BOARD ENDS POLICIES - FY23 OUTCOME MEASURES

OUTCOME MEASURE

FY 20-21 Outcome

FY 21-22 Outcome

Target Outcome

E-2: Valley Water provides reli
communities served.

able, safe, and affordable

water supply for current

and future generations in all

Maintain Valley Water's California Green Business
Certification.

Yes, Valley Water is certified as a California
Green Business.

Yes, Valley Water is certified as a California
Green Business.

Valley Water is certified as a California Green Business.

Percent of Valley Water's operating facilities are
equipped with Electric Vehicle (EV) chanrging
infrastructure.

28% of Valley Water's operating facilities are
equipped with EV charging infrastructure.

28% of Valley Water's operating facilities are
equipped with EV charging infrastructure.

100% of Valley Water's operating facilities are equipped
with EV charging infrastructure.

Percent of Valley Water's passenger vehicle portfolio
that have been converted to electric vehicles (EVs).

Valley Water's passenger vehicle fleet is
51% Hybrid and 5% EVs.

Valley Water's passenger vehicle fleet is
54% Hybrid and 5% EVs.

100% of Valley Water's passenger vehicles are EVs.

Attachment 2
Page 2 of 2



A Santa Clara Valley Water District

Valley Water
File No.: 23-0025 Agenda Date: 1/20/2023
Item No.: 4.4.
COMMITTEE AGENDA MEMORANDUM
Board Audit Committee
Government Code § 84308 Applies: Yes [ No
(If “YES” Complete Attachment A - Gov. Code § 84308)
SUBJECT:

Discuss Board Audit Committee’s 2023 Annual Self-Evaluation Process, Provide Guidance
Regarding Preferred Method to Conduct Process, and Request Chief Audit Executive to Conduct Self
-evaluation Process and Return to Provide Summary of Discussions.

RECOMMENDATION:
A. Discuss Board Audit Committee’s 2023 annual self-evaluation process; and

B. Provide guidance regarding preferred method to conduct process; and

C. Request Chief Audit Executive (CAE) to conduct self-evaluation process and return to provide
summary of discussions.

SUMMARY:

The Board Audit Committee (BAC) was established to assist the Board of Directors (Board),
consistent with direction from the full Board, to identify potential areas for audit and audit priorities,
and to review, update, plan, and coordinate execution of Board audits.

On December 13, 2022, the Board approved the latest revision of the BAC Audit Charter that
provides detailed guidance regarding how the BAC should carry out its functions and to guide the
work of the CAE, Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting, Inc.

According to Article 9, paragraph 4 of the BAC Audit Charter, the BAC shall conduct a self-evaluation
of its performance annually. The Committee shall conduct the evaluation of its performance to
determine whether it is functioning effectively and to discuss with the Independent Auditor any
observations related to the effectiveness of the Committee. The Committee shall prepare a formal
report based upon each such self-evaluation and shall provide such report to the full Board following
its adoption by the Committee.

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 1 of 2 Printed on 1/13/2023

89 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

File No.: 23-0025 Agenda Date: 1/20/2023
Item No.: 4.4.

In prior years, the self-evaluation process was initiated when BAC members were given an
evaluation template to consider, complete, and return to the CAE for analysis and summary.

At its January 19, 2022, BAC meeting the committee discussed the prior year’s self-evaluation
process. The general consensus was that the previous process did not produce sufficiently valuable
insight regarding the effectiveness of the committee. During the discussion it was decided that the
CAE would conduct interviews with the Committee members and submit a report summarizing the
results of the self-evaluation. The report would be brought back to the BAC for consideration at a
later date.

On April 20, 2022, the CAE presented the results of the most recent self-evaluation to the BAC,
which revealed, consistent with prior years, members of the BAC generally agreed that the overall
governance and activities of the committee were aligned with its charter. However, members did raise
specific areas where improvements may be achieved, and value added. These include:

+ Maintaining and increasing open communication between the Board and individual directors
and the Chief Audit Executive

» Formalizing communication between the BAC and external auditors (at least quarterly),
including review of audit results

» Establishing a process to annually review the BAC Charter to identify desired or required
updates

+ Allowing the Chief Audit Executive and external auditors to raise sensitive issues in
compliance with the Brown Act

* Meeting duration and content can be excessive and bureaucratic

* Minimizing adversarial nature of audits, to the extent possible, while building buy-in from
management and staff

The purpose of this agenda item is to discuss the initiation of the 2023 annual self-evaluation process
and provide guidance to the CAE regarding the BAC’s preferred method to conduct the process.

ATTACHMENTS:
None.

UNCLASSIFIED MANAGER:
Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 2 of 2 Printed on 1/13/2023

90 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

A Santa Clara Valley Water District

Valley Water
File No.: 23-0027 Agenda Date: 1/20/2023
Item No.: 4.5.
COMMITTEE AGENDA MEMORANDUM
Board Audit Committee
Government Code § 84308 Applies: Yes [1 No
(If “YES” Complete Attachment A - Gov. Code § 84308)
SUBJECT:

Request Chief Audit Executive (CAE) Activity Report from Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting, Inc. to
Evaluate CAE Performance, and Return to Present Report At A Later Date.

RECOMMENDATION:
A. Request Chief Audit Executive (CAE) activity report from Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting, Inc. to
evaluate CAE performance; and
B. Direct CAE to return to present report at a future meeting.

SUMMARY:

The Board Audit Committee (BAC) was established to assist the Board of Directors (Board),
consistent with direction from the full Board, to identify potential areas for audit and audit priorities,
and to review, update, plan, and coordinate execution of Board audits.

Per the BAC Charter, the BAC is tasked annually with evaluating Board Auditor performance. The
purpose of this agenda item is to request the Board Auditor Activity Report from the CAE to assist in
performing the evaluation.

Past activity reports from the CAE provided a summary of accomplishments and activities, meeting
attendance, task order completion, and a financial overview.

For this agenda item, the Committee may request the CAE to report on similar areas as addressed in
past reports or on areas as determined by the Committee.

ATTACHMENTS:
None.

UNCLASSIFIED MANAGER:

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 1 of 2 Printed on 1/13/2023

9 1 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

File No.: 23-0027 Agenda Date: 1/20/2023
Item No.: 4.5.

Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 2 of 2 Printed on 1/13/2023

92 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

A Santa Clara Valley Water District

Valley Water
File No.: 23-0029 Agenda Date: 1/20/2023
Item No.: 4.6.
COMMITTEE AGENDA MEMORANDUM
Board Audit Committee
Government Code § 84308 Applies: Yes [1 No
(If “YES” Complete Attachment A - Gov. Code § 84308)
SUBJECT:

2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan Updates.

RECOMMENDATION:
A. Discuss the 2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan; and
B. Authorize staff to either (1) solicit Board input regarding future audit topics in order to develop
recommended updates to 2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan; or (2) present 2022-2024
Annual Audit Work Plan to the full Board for consideration and approval subject to any
changes approved by the BAC.

SUMMARY:

On January 11, 2022, the proposed 2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan was approved by the Board.
At its January 19th meeting, the Board Audit Committee (BAC) identified the top 3 areas of interest to
be audited in 2022: 1) ID #1, CIP Process; 2) ID #3, Emergency Response; and 3) ID #6, Data
Management.

At its April 20th meeting, the BAC authorized staff to seek approval from the full Board to initiate the
CIP Process Audit as the first audit for 2022 and to authorize Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting, Inc. to
conduct the audit.

At its May 24th, 2022, meeting, Valley Water’s Board of Directors authorized staff to proceed with the
CIP Process Audit, and authorized Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting, Inc. to conduct the audit.

On October 19", 2022, the BAC authorized staff to seek agreement from the full Board regarding the
recommendation to modify the 2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan (Attachment 1) by removing the
audit objective related to the organizational alignment of Risk Management from the work plan. At
the November 22", 2022, Board Meeting, the Board agreed with the recommendation, and
authorized staff to modify the 2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan accordingly.

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 1 of 2 Printed on 1/13/2023

93 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

File No.: 23-0029 Agenda Date: 1/20/2023
Item No.: 4.6.

Per the Board Audit Committee Charter (Article 3, Section 7.2), at least annually the Committee shall
develop and submit a proposed Annual Audit Work Plan to the full Board for consideration and
approval. Recognizing there are two new members of the Board and and one year has elapsed since
the Board approved the current annual audit work plan, the BAC is asked to consider approving one
of two options. Either:

(1) Authorizing staff to solicit input from the current Board regarding potential future audits. That
information could then be brought back to the BAC for consideration in drafting any proposed
updates to the 2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan; or

(2) Alternatively, rather than soliciting such Board input first, the BAC could presently identify any
potential changes to the attached Annual Audit Work Plan, if applicable, and authorize staff to
provide the Annual Audit Work Plan to the full Board for consideration and approval at the next
possible Board meeting.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1;: 2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan

UNCLASSIFIED MANAGER:
Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 2 of 2 Printed on 1/13/2023

94 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

FY 2022-2024
. Annual Audit
Work Plan

Updated as of November 22, 2022

95




SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANNUAL AUDIT WORK PLAN, FY 2022-2024

ANNUAL AUDIT WORK PLAN

The Audit Work Plan serves as a tool for communicating audit priorities as determined by the
Santa Clara Valley Water District’s Board Audit Committee (BAC) and Board of Directors. The
selection of audits for formal review and approval by the Board of Directors is an important
responsibility of the Audit Committee.

Audits are an important oversight tool because they provide independent and fact-based
information to management and elected officials. Those charged with governance and oversight
canuse theinformation to improve program performance and operations, reduce costs, facilitate
decision making.

Audits can:

Verify that programs, services, and operations are working based on your understanding.
Assess efficiency and effectiveness.

Identify the root cause or problems.

Assess the progress of prior audit recommendations.

Identify the impact of changes

Identify leading practices.

Assess regulatory compliance.

Develop policy options.

Assess the accuracy of financial information reported.

The types of audits that can be conducted include:

Internal audits: Internal audits review the environment, information, and activities that
are designed to provide proper accountability over District operations.

Compliance audits: Compliance audits review adherence to policies and procedures, state
regulatory requirements, and/or federal regulatory requirements.

Performance audits (impact or prospective audits): Performance audits review the
economy, efficiency, and effectiveness of Valley Water programs, services, and
operations.

Desk reviews: Small and quick audits.

Follow up audits: Follow up audits assess the implementation status of recommendations
included in prior audit reports.

Best practices reviews: Compares current operations to best practices.

1|Page

96 Attachment 1

Page 2 of 14



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANNUAL AUDIT WORK PLAN, FY 2022-2024

This proposed audit work plan is divided into sections. Section A describes anticipated ongoing
support services to be provided by the independent auditor as well as other quality assurance
activities planned by Valley Water’s executive management. Section B describes the audits

planned for implementation by the Independent Auditor.

SECTION A

ONGOING SUPPORT SERVICES AND SPECIAL PROJECTS

The following table lists non-audit services and special projects for the FY 2022 to 2024 audit

work plan:

Project/Responsible
Party

Scope FY 2022

Planned Hours

FY 2023 FY 2024
Planned Hours Planned Hours

Board of Director &
Board Audit
Committee Requests
for Information/
Independent Auditor

Ongoing. Should the 80
Board of Directors
request information on
activities implemented
by other public agencies
or on other matters of
interests applicable to
enhancing the efficiency
and effectiveness of
operations, the
independent auditor will
collect and summarize
information.

80 80

Audit Training/
Independent Auditor

Annual. The Board Audit 2
Committee Charter

describes a requirement

to provide audit training

to Board Audit

Committee members at

least annually.

Support Services/
Independent Auditor

Ongoing. Provide 40
support services to

Board Directors and

Valley Water staff

applicable to specific

initiatives or planning

projects to prevent

potential service delivery

risks.

40 40

QEMS/Valley Water
Continual Quality
Improvement Unit

Ongoing. Provide As needed
services to ensure
proper oversight and

accountability.

As needed As needed

97

2|Page
Attachment 1
Page 3 of 14



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANNUAL AUDIT WORK PLAN, FY 2022-2024

Management Ongoing. Valley Water’s As needed As needed As needed
Reviews/Valley Chief Executive Officer
Water Management ,as needed, will initiate

internal quality

assurance reviews of

business practices and

operations. These

reviews are to be shared

with the audit

committee.

SECTION B

AUDIT SERVICES — INDEPENDENT AND ON-CALL AUDITORS

Labor Summary

Project/Responsible Scope FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024
Party Planned Hours Planned Hours Planned Hours
Independent and On-  Audits and Follow-up TBD TBD TBD
Call Auditors Audits Based on the
Audit Work Plan
3|Page

9 8 Attachment 1

Page 4 of 14



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANNUAL AUDIT WORK PLAN, FY 2022-2024

Recommended Audits

The Board Audit Committee will select and recommend audits described below for approval by
the Board of Directors.

Risk Area(s)

Risk Factor

Audit Topic

Type of Audit

Suggested Audit Objectives

2

CIP Planning
Process

Financial
Management

Inventory
Control

X Financial
XReputational
XlOperational

O Financial
XReputational
XlOperational

CIP Planning
Process

Inventory
Management

Cross-Functional

Performance
Audit

Cross-Functional

Performance
Audit

Are there opportunities to
improve the capital
improvement project planning
process (project initiation to CIP
plan approval)?

To what extent can early
participation of Valley Water
support units (environmental
planning, permitting,
purchasing, warehousing) on
large capital projects prevent
project delays and reduce cost
overruns?

Can the Capital Improvement
Plan be better right sized that
considers the Agency’s funding
and staffing levels?

Does Valley Water effectively
manage, account for and record
inventory across the agency?
What resources (e.g., staffing,
systems, facilities) and business
processes (communication and
coordination) are necessary to
meet current and future needs
including centralizing inventory
management?

Emergency
Response

Emergency
Detection

Emergency
Management

OFinancial
OReputational
XlOperational

Program
Monitoring

Cross-Functional

Performance
Audit

To what extent do the
emergency management plans
variously established by Valley
Water contain gaps and
activities to ensure proper
prevention, detection, response,
and recovery activities?

Do gaps exist in surveillance and
detection of potential problems
across Valley Water’s
infrastructure?

4|Page
Attachment 1
Page 5 of 14



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANNUAL AUDIT WORK PLAN, FY 2022-2024

To what extent is the virtual
Emergency Operations Center
aligned with FEMA best
practices?

Are there lessons learned from
past emergencies to prevent
disruptions to regular operations
while providing additional
manpower and resources to
respond to emergencies?

Emergency Cost
Recovery

Data
Management &
Accuracy

X Financial
OReputational
O Operational

Financial
Management

Cross-Functional

Performance
Audit

1.

To what extent has Valley Water
been able to claim the full
reimbursement of costs for
eligible expenses from FEMA?
Are business practices aligned
with federal and state aid
requirements for emergency
cost reimbursement?

To what extent are information
systems and other business
processes configured to capture
information needed for cost
reporting and recovery?

Financial
Oversight

Purchasing and
Contracting
Processes

X Financial
O Reputational
O Operational

Financial
Management

Performance
Audit

To what extent do Valley Water
procurement programs for low
dollar purchases (i.e., P-Cards, &
Standing Orders) comply with
established policies and
procurement limits?

Are added policies and
procedures needed to control
spending and prevent work
arounds to formal competitive
bids?

Data

Management
Date Integrity
Data Accuracy

OFinancial
XReputational
XlOperational

Business Process

Cross Functional

Performance
Audit

1. To what extent does Valley

Water use multiple data stores
for the same information?

Plan
Implementa-
tion

Plan Monitoring

OFinancial
O Reputational
XlOperational

Organizational
Culture

Culture Audit

How has Valley Water's
organizational culture impacted
implementation of plan
established across the agency?

. To what extent does Valley

Water demonstrate and practice
common cultural characteristics
including:

100

5|Page
Attachment 1
Page 6 of 14



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANNUAL AUDIT WORK PLAN, FY 2022-2024

a) Defining organization’s

b)

c)

d)

f)

g)

values and proactively
emphasize and model those
values.

Ensuring strategies are
consistent with the values
and holding management
accountable.

Executing their duties within
the organization’s risk
appetite.

Management reinforces the
values and culture through
clear communication of
expectations across the
organization.

Management actively
gathers and listens to
feedback.

All levels are open to
constructive criticism and
problem solving through
methods including
information obtained from
second- and third-line
functions via inputs such as
well-received and
acknowledged employee
suggestion/question
program, ethics hotlines,
open door policies,
employees’ events, and
meetings, and more.

All employees (to the extent
possible) are engaged in
objective setting and
strategy discussions.

Grant
Management

Financial
Management

Coord. & Comm.

Financial
Oversight

Data Accuracy

XlFinancial
O Reputational
OOperational

Grant
Reimbursement

101

Performance
Audit

1.

Can Valley Water’s process for
tracking labor and expense
activities on state grants
awarded to Valley Water benefit
from updating?

How timely are claims for
reimbursement submitted to
awarding state agencies?

What circumstances have
contributed to lost opportunities

6|Page
Attachment 1
Page 7 of 14



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANNUAL AUDIT WORK PLAN, FY 2022-2024

for reimbursement by awarding
state agencies?

9

Plan Monitoring [Financial

0 Reputational
XlOperational

Human Resources

Management

Cross-Functional

Performance
Audit

1.

What progress has been made
in implementing existing
workforce development and
succession planning plans?
What evidenced-based factors
have been significant in
facilitating the hiring of
technical and operational staff?
To what extent have position
descriptions and classification
evolved to ensure that Valley
Water has the technical
capability to meet future
demands to solve complex
problems in an agile and
creative manner?

10

Aging
Infrastructure
Detection

Aging
Infrastructure
Monitoring

XlFinancial
0 Reputational
XlOperational

Asset
Management

Cross-Functional

Performance
Audit

To what extent do Valley Water
divisions and units ensure
compliance to specification
standards to prevent
substandard replacements of
parts, equipment, and capital
assets?

Is Valley Water adequately

meeting the needs of equipment
maintenance?

11

Data Accuracy

XIFinancial
0 Reputational
OO Operational

Unmetered
Groundwater
Measurement

Desk Review

1. Is the methodology supporting

unmetered groundwater usage
measurement valid and include
all applicable methodological
assumptions?

12

CIP Planning
Process

Financial
Management

XIFinancial
0 Reputational
OO Operational

Capital Project
Budgeting

Performance
Audit

1. Are there areas of Valley

Water’s capital project
budgeting practices that can
benefit from adopting best
practices?

13

IT Security
Management

OFinancial
0 Reputational
XlOperational

SCADA

Performance
Audit

What is the status of
implementation of prior audit
recommendations?

Will the recommendations as
implemented by Valley Water
accomplish intended goals and
objectives?

102

7|Page
Attachment 1
Page 8 of 14



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANNUAL AUDIT WORK PLAN, FY 2022-2024

3. Are changes needed in the

frequency of communications to
the Board on the progress and
status of cybersecurity and other
IT needs?

14

Plan Monitoring XFinancial

0 Reputational

Management O Operational

Plan
Implementation

Strategy
Development
and
Implementation

Cross-
Functional
Performance
Audit

To what extent are management
plans underway or completed
across Valley Water?

To what extent do the plans
need a completion date or
require updating?

Are strategy and management
plans developed across the
Agency right sized to the
divisions and/or units’ staffing
levels and workloads?

What progress has Valley Water
made in implementing

management plans to manage
risks?

15

OFinancial
0 Reputational
XlOperational

Program
Monitoring

Governance

Management

Homelessness
Programs

Performance
Audit

To what extent has Valley Water
implemented its homelessness
plan?

Can other cost-effective
strategies implemented in other
jurisdictions to prevent the
creation and establishment of
homeless encampments on
Valley Water property?

How can Valley Water enhance
its homelessness encampment
clean-up activities to ensure the
protection of health and safety
of employees?

16

Grant
Management

XlFinancial
XReputational
XlOperational

Financial
Management

Follow-Up Audit

Have improvements occurred in
the timeliness of grant
reimbursements?

To what extent has the grant
management and administration
implemented prior audit
recommendations?

What improvements in program
outcomes have occurred in the
timeliness of grant application
review, reimbursement, and
accomplishment of deliverables?

103

8|Page
Attachment 1
Page 9 of 14



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANNUAL AUDIT WORK PLAN, FY 2022-2024

17 Program OFinancial Encroachment Performance 1. Is Valley Water implementing its
Monitoring XReputational ~Program Audit encroachment licensing program
K Operational consistent with the Board'’s
Management guiding principles?
18 Data OFinancial Business Process Cross Functional 1. To what extent have Valley
Management XReputational Performance Water units established business
XOperational Audit processes to ensure accurate
Data Accuracy data collection and input?
2. What gaps remain in automating
data collection and input?
19 Operations OFinancial Risk Management Performance 1. Can risk management business
OReputational Audit processes benefit from
R Operational updating? (i.e., overall
operations, data management,
contract claims, workers
compensation, small claims,
claims administration and
management, workers
compensation administration,
and all risk management
activities, including insurance &
self-insurance.
20 Emergency OFinancial Peer Review Best Practices 1. Can regulatory permitting
Management OReputational Review practices administered by other
K Operational utilities districts help reduce
barriers and other challenges
experienced by Valley Water?
21 IT Project CFinancial System Post IT 1. Has the current large ERP
Management &  JReputational !Mplementation Implementation project implementation
Communication [ Qperational Audit produced the desired

Data Accuracy

functionality?

2. To what extent have all contract
deliverables been met?

3. To what extent have data quality
issues surfaced post-
implementation?

4. What lessons learned can apply
to future information system
implementations?

104

9|Page
Attachment 1
Page 10 of 14



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANNUAL AUDIT WORK PLAN, FY 2022-2024

22 Emergency O Financial Procurement Performance Have Valley Water’s

Response XReputational Audit procurement policies been

K Operational flexible and agile to effectively

Emergency and timely respond to and

Management recover from past emergencies?
Are other procurement and
operational activities needed to
ensure prompt and reliable
emergency services?

23 Environmental O Financial Program Cross-Functional What level of success has Valley
Sustainability XReputational Measurement & Performance Water’s environmental
Framework XK Operational Evaluation Audit stewardship activities had on
Development preventing environmental

damage and promoting
Program environmental sustainability?
Monitoring To what extent has Valley Water
adopted sustainability indicators
Governance on specific projects to measure
progress?
To what extent has Valley Water
adopted sustainability indicators
in its decision-making?

24 Program OFinancial Program Performance To what extent has Valley Water

Monitoring OReputational  Outcomes Audit mitigated the environmental
KOperational hazards caused by non-use of

Management Business Process the percolator ponds?
In a non-drought year, are
barriers present that prevent
Valley Water from filling
percolator ponds?
What processes need
development to prevent
expiration of groundwater
charge permits?

25 Financial XFinancial Capital projects Desk Review 1. What potential financial risks
Management CReputational could occur on the California
Coord. & Comm.  Qperational WaterFix project?

Financial
Oversight
26 CIP Monitoring  OFinancial Capital Project Cross-Functional Have completed capital projects
KReputational ~Evaluation and Performance met their intended goals?
Monitoring Audit To what extent does Valley

XlOperational

Water include performance
measures to measure success
and monitor financial
management?

105

10| Page
Attachment 1
Page 11 of 14



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANNUAL AUDIT WORK PLAN, FY 2022-2024

Are there lessons learned that
can be adopted in future capital
project plans to ensure goal
accomplishments as well as
implementation of alternative
strategies to facilitate early
communication to the Board of
Directors of potential and actual
problems, and to predict success
such as performing cost vs.
benefit analysis?

27 IT Security OFinancial IT Risk Desk review 1. Towhat extentis IT risk

Management OReputational Management management activities aligned

KOperational with best practices, such as

National Institute of Standards
and Technology (NIST) guidance,
including whether acceptable
risk appetites and risk tolerances
have been formally documented
and approved by the Board of
Directors?

28 Purchasing and CFinancial Financial Oversight Desk Review 1. Can Valley Water benefit from
Contracting OReputational updating its qualifications and
Processes K Operational experience criteria to include in

future competitive bids for
external financial audit services?

29 IT Strategic O Financial Disaster Planning  Performance 1. Does Valley Water’s
Planning XReputational Audit prioritization for systems and

KOperational data recovery meet the agency’s
Emergency needs for sustained business
Management continuity?
2. To what extent does Valley
Water’s process for determining
the prioritization of systems and
data recovery adhere to best
practices (ex. NIST)?

30 Plan OFinancial Decision-Making Cross-Functional 1. What lessons has Valley Water
Development OReputational Performance learned from its ad hoc cross-

K Operational Audit functional efforts to proactively
Plan address current or emerging
Implementation risks?
Plan Monitoring

31 Financial XFinancial Outsourcing of Desk Review 1. How have changes occurred in
Oversight CReputational  Legal Services District Counsel Office spending

XlOperational

106

11| Page
Attachment 1
Page 12 of 14



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANNUAL AUDIT WORK PLAN, FY 2022-2024

for contracting external legal
services?

To what extent are the nature of
services provided by contracted
legal firms presently outside of
the District Counsel Office’s
expertise?

Can expanding outsourced legal
services prevent project delivery
delays?

107

12| Page
Attachment 1
Page 13 of 14



SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANNUAL AUDIT WORK PLAN, FY 2022-2024

SECTION C

AUDIT SERVICES — VALLEY WATER RESPONSIBILITY

QEMS ACTIVITIES

Under development

COMPLIANCE AND FINANCIAL AUDITS

FINANCIAL AUDITS
Financial Audits

Treasurer's Report

Appropriation's Limit

Compensation and Benefit Compliance (odd years)

Travel Expenses Reimbursement (even years)

Single Audit (if applicable)

WUE Fund Audit

108

13| Page
Attachment 1
Page 14 of 14



	0001_0_Board Agenda Memo
	0001_1_Attachment 1 2023 BAC Work Plan
	Sheet1

	0002_0_Board Agenda Memo
	0002_1_Attachment 1 PowerPoint
	Slide Number 2
	AGENDA��
	BACKGROUND��
	INSURANCE CERTIFICATION MANAGEMENT - EBIX��
	OVERVIEW OF PROCUREMENT PROCESS��
	OVERVIEW OF PROCUREMENT PROCESS (CONT.)��
	VENDOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (VPE)����
	VENDOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (VPE)����
	VENDOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION���
	VENDOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION���
	PROCUREMENT MANUAL�
	Slide Number 13

	0003_0_Board Agenda Memo
	0003_1_Attachment 1 Transparency Compliance Audit Review
	0003_2_Attachment 2 Valley Water Ends Policies Outcome Measures
	Revised Outcome Measures

	0004_0_Board Agenda Memo
	0005_0_Board Agenda Memo
	0006_0_Board Agenda Memo
	0006_1_Attachment 1 2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan
	011723 BAC Cover Page.pdf
	0001_0_Board Agenda Memo
	0001_1_Attachment 1 122121 ECCC Meeting Minutes
	0002_0_Board Agenda Memo
	0002_1_Attachment 1 PowerPoint
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12

	0003_0_Board Agenda Memo
	0004_0_Board Agenda Memo
	0004_1_Attachment 1 PowerPoint
	0005_0_Board Agenda Memo
	0005_1_Attachment 1 ECCC 2021 Accomplishments Report
	0006_0_Board Agenda Memo
	0006_1_Attachment 1 ECCC 2022 Work Plan
	Coversheet 011822.pdf
	M E E T I N G   N O T I C E





